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The Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority (NBFIRA), also
known as the Regulatory Authority is required under Section 32 of the
NBFIRA Act (CAP 46:08) to publish an Annual Report for its financial year.

The 2016 Annual report is therefore published in fulfiment of the statutory
requirements and highlights the RegulatoryAuthority’s financial and operational
performance for the year 2015/16. However, financial performance of
regulated entities is based on audited financial statements for the calendar
year ended December 31,2015. Historical data is reported for purposes of

emphasis of developments pertaining to the review period.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT is available @ http://www.nbfira.org.bw



ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THE REPORT

BDC
BPOPF
BSE
CISNA
Clu
CLI
CMI
CSDB
DPF
ESAAMLG
€]p]
IAIS
IFRS
IFSC
IMF
IOPS
I0SCO
IT

KYC
MVAF
NRA
LHS
NBFI
NBFIRA
SADC
SIBs
RHS
RFII

Botswana Development Corporation

Botswana Public Officers’ Pension Fund

Botswana Stock Exchange

Committee of Insurance, Securities and Non-Banking Regulators
Collective Investment Undertakings

Credit Life Insurance

Capital Market Intermediaries

Central Securities Depository (Botswana) Pty Limited
Debswana Pension Fund

Eastern and Southern Africa Anti-Money Laundering Group
Gross Domestic Product

International Association of Insurance Supervisors
International Financial Reporting Standards
International Financial Services Centre

International Monetary Fund

International Organization of Pension Supervisors
International Organization of Securities Commissions
Information Technology

Know- Your- Customer

Motor Vehicle Accident Fund

National Risk Assessment

Left Hand Scale

Non-Bank Financial Institution

Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority
Southern African Development Community
Securities Infrastructure Businesses

Right Hand Scale

Retirement Funds and Investment Institutions
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Asset Manager: means a person who, under an agreement with another person, applies assets of the other person by way of investment,
whether the asset manager makes those investments in its own name or not but does not include a custodian or a trustee.

Administrator of a pension or provident fund: means a person who provides administration or similar services to the fund.

Central Securities Depository: means a facility for the deposit, clearing or settlement of securities transactions, whether physically, electronically
or otherwise.

Collective Investment Undertaking: means an arrangement, where the principal object of which is the collective investment of its funds in
real or personal property of whatever kind, including securities and other liquid financial assets, with the aim of giving its members, or section-
holders the benefit of the result of the management of funds and spreading investment risk and the units of which are at the request of holders,
purchased, directly or indirectly out of those undertakings assets. A collective investment undertaking can be constituted as a section trust or as
an investment company with variable capital whose articles provide that the actual value of the paid up share capital of the company shall at all
times be equal to the net asset value of the company and the shares of the company shall have no par value.

Custodian: means a person who holds property of another person for safekeeping.

Finance and Leasing Company: means a body corporate that provides loans, advances or leasing products, but does not include a bank or a
deposit taking institution.

Friendly Society: means an association of persons established with no share capital for the purpose of aiding members of the association or their
dependents, being an association that does not employ a person whose main occupation is canvassing for members of, or collecting contributions
or subscriptions for; the association.

Insurance Agent: means a person who solicits applications for insurance or collects premiums for an insurer.

Insurance Broker: means a person who arranges insurance otherwise than as agent of the insurer.

Insurer: means a person who undertakes liabilities by way of insurance (including general insurance, life insurance and reinsurance), whether or
not as a member of an association of underwriters and includes a person operating a medical aid fund.

International Insurance Firm: means an undertaking which carries on international insurance business and includes an insurance manager; a
principal insurance representative and an insurance agent.

Investment Advisor: means a person who gives other persons investment advice or recommendations (including about holding and disposing
of investments) in relation to securities or other assets.

Management Company for a Collective Investment Undertaking: means an incorporated body responsible for the establishment, promotion,
management and administration of a collective investment undertaking.

Member of the Insurance Industry: means an insurance surveyor; a risk manager, a loss assessor; a loss adjuster or a claims settlement agent.

Micro Lender: means a person who advances loans to persons, where the loans do not exceed a prescribed amount, but does not include a
person licensed in terms of the Banking Act or the Building Societies Act.

Pension Fund: means any fund the principal objective of which is to provide for the payment of a pension to a person, who has been a member
of the fund, on his retirement.

Provident Fund: means any fund which is not a pension fund where a lump sum payment is made at retirement.

Securities Broker/Dealer: means a person who carries on the business of buying and selling securities on behalf of other persons or a person
who regularly buys or sells securities on his own behalf otherwise than through a licensed securities dealer.

Securities Exchange: means a market, exchange, place or facility that provides for bringing together; on a regular basis, buyers and sellers of
securities to negotiate or conclude sales of securities.

Trustee of a Collective Investment Undertaking: means a person acting as a trustee of a section trust.

Trustee of a Pension or Provident Fund: means a person acting as a trustee of a pension or provident fund.

Financial Group: means a group of companies under common control comprised of one or more prudentially regulated non-bank financial
institutions and their subsidiaries.

Other: Other persons may be prescribed as non-bank financial institutions through promulgation of relevant regulations in terms of the Act. As
at the report writing date there no NBFIs declared as such.

NBFIRA
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CORPORATE PROFILE

MANDATE

The Regulatory Authority derives its mandate to regulate and
supervise the non-bank financial institutions (NBFls) from
Section 8 of the NBFIRA Act (CAP46:08). In terms of the
NBFIRA Act, the principal object of the Regulatory Authority is
to foster the following:-

Safety and soundness of the NBFIs;

The highest standards of conduct of business by the NBFls;
Fairness, efficiency and orderliness of the Non-Bank
Financial sector;

Stability of the financial system; and

Reduction and deterrence of financial crime.

VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

To support its fundamental and principal object, the
Regulatory Authority subscribes to the following vision,
mission and values statement in order to embrace a
culture of a high performance organization.

Vision

To be an efficient and effective regulatory and
supervisory authority in line with international best
practices.

Mission

To regulate and supervise the Non-Bank Financial
Institutions for the purpose of contributing towards
financial stability.

Values
Integrity
We adhere to the highest ethical standards.

Transparency
We are open and frank in our operations.

Fairness We consistently promote equal treatment in
our dealings with all stakeholders.

Accountability
We are responsible to our stakeholders.

Diligence

We are through and persistent in the execution of our
duties.

NBFIRA




THE REGULATORY FRAMEWORK FOR THE NBFI SECTOR

The legislative framework governing the operations of both the
Regulatory Authority and the regulated NBFIs is known as the “financial
services laws”. The NBFIRA Act is the umbrella act of the financial
services laws for regulation of the NBFI sector. The Act prescribes the
operations, responsibilities and accountabilities of NBFIRA including
corporate governance, staffing, finances, and reporting to stakeholders. It
also provides a comprehensive licensing regime for supervised entities and
provides NBFIRA with powers to remedy imprudent practices, unethical
conduct, and contraventions of the law through the issuance of notices,
issuance of orders, issuance of directives, the acceptance of undertakings,

the imposition of civil penalties and the application to the courts in the
most serious cases involving offences.

The regulated NBFIs and / or activities in Table | below are listed in
Section 49(2) of the NBFIRA Act. Friendly Societies, although defined in
Section 2 of the Act as non-bank financial institutions are not regulated
in terms of Section 49(2). Notwithstanding the provisions of the afore-
mentioned Section, the Regulatory Authority, in consultation with the
Ministry of Finance and Development Planning, may declare other NBFls
to be prudentially regulated entities through the promulgation of relevant
regulations, in accordance with Section 49(3) of the same Act.

Tablel: Financial Services Laws and their application to the regulated NBFIs

The Umbrella Act - The Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority (NBFIRA) Act (CAP 46:08) “the Act”

Name of the Industry Act

INSURANCE INDUSTRY

The Insurance Industry Act.

Supporting Rules and Regulations

Insurance Industry Regulations;
Insurance Prudential Rules.

The International Insurance Act.

RETIREMENT FUNDS INDUSTRY

The Pension and Provident Funds Act.
Part XVI of the Income Tax Act.

CAPITAL MARKETS INDUSTRY

The Botswana Stock Exchange Act.

Specific Regulations (pending finalisation)

Pensions Prudential Rules, 2012;

NBFIRA Commodities Exchange Licensing

National Clearance and Settlements Act. Regulations;
Income Tax Act Part XVI. NBFIRA Market Intermediaries Licensing
The Collective Investment Undertaking Act. Rules, 2012;

NBFIRA Securities Business Corporate
Governance Rules, 2012;

CIU Regulations;

NBFIRA Market Intermediaries ‘Conduct
of Business Rules, 2012;

NBFIRA Persons Operating a Securities
Infrastructure Business Rules, 2012

INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS INDUSTRY

The Collective Investments Undertakings Act  Industry

CIU Regulations;

NBFIRA Market Intermediaries ‘Conduct
of Business Rules, 2012;

NBFIRA Securities Business Corporate
Governance Rules, 2012;

NBFIRA Persons Operating a Securities

Infrastructure Business Rules 2012.

LENDING ACTIVITIES INDUSTRY

Micro Lending Regulations, 2012

Type of NBFls

Re-insurer:

Insurer;

Insurance Broker;

Insurance corporate Agent and Representatives
(natural persons)

Global Insurance Firm

Medical Aid Funds

A pension or provident fund;
A trustee of a pension or provident fund; and
Pension Fund Administrator

The operator of a securities exchange;

A person operating a central securities depository
(CSD);and

A securities Dealer/Broker

International Financial Services Centre (IFSC)
Accredited NBFIs

A trustee of a collective investment undertaking;
A collective investment undertaking that is an
investment company with variable capital;

A person operating a collective investment
undertaking other than one described above;

A custodian;

Management Company for a collective investment
undertaking (MANCO);

An Asset Manager; and

Investment Advisor.

Micro Lenders;
Finance or Leasing Companies

Note: Other financial services laws applicable to all NBFls include, inter alia, the Companies Act, the Income Tax Act, the Financial Intelligence Act and

their supporting regulations.
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CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT

NBFIRA

THE INSURANCE SECTOR PERFORMED WELL AS GROSS
WRITTEN PREMIUM INCREASED BY 7% FROM P3.960
BILLION IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR TO P4.624 BILLION IN
THE CURRENT YEAR. THE SECTOR (INSURERS) HOWEVER
EXPERIENCED A 1% DECLINE IN THE TOTAL ASSET BASE
FROM P21.497 BILLION IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR TO CLOSE
AT P21.250 BILLION IN THE CURRENT YEAR

Mrs. Mmatlala Dube On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am

Board Chairperson pleased to present the Non-Bank Financial
Institutions Regulatory Authority's Annual Report
for the year ended 31 March 2016 prepared in
accordance with the provisions of Section 32 of
the NBFIRA Act, 2006.

Financial Performance

The Regulatory Authority recorded a total
operating deficit of P13.4 million in the financial
year 2015/2016, compared to a deficit of P1.7
million in the prior financial year 2014/2015. The
deficient was attributable to significant increase
in operating costs while increase in revenue was
modest. Total revenue was P50.6 million being
an increase of 9% from P46.4 million recorded
in the previous year. Total expenditure on the
other hand increased significantly from P50.8
million in 2014 to P65.4 million in 2015 primarily
driven by increase in staff costs and administration
expenses. The Authority however remains a going
concern entity.

Strategic Plan 2013 — 2016

The year 2016 marked the last year of the
implementation of the Authority’s Strategic Plan
2013 — 2016.Significant projects such as the
information technology system to support the
Risk Based Supervision and the Oracles ERP
among others have been completed and have
resulted in an efficient and effective delivery of

regulatory supervision.



CHAIRPERSON'S REPORT (cont.)

Economic and Financial Sector Environment

During the review period,the NBFls operated in a slow growth and
low inflation macro-economic environment in both the domestic
and global financial markets. In turn, total assets of the NBFl sector,
when excluding assets of retirement funds and assets managed on
behalf of retail and privates clients, registered a decline of 4% from
P32.9 billion in 2014 to P 31.5 billion in 2015. Retirement funds
assets on the other hand, grew by a significant 25.4% from P59
billion in 2014 to P74 billion in 2015 due to significant increase in
offshore equities.

The insurance sector performed well as gross written premium
increased by 17% from P3.960 billion in the previous year to
P4.624 billion in the current year. The sector (insurers) however
experienced a 1% decline in the total asset base from P21.497
billion in the previous year to close at P21.250 billion in the

current year.

The Micro Lending total assets strengthened by 14% from P2.9
billion in 2014 to P3.3 billion in 2015.The increase in total assets
was attributable to a recorded growth rate of 15% in the loan
book values from P2.6 billion in 2014 to P3 billion in 2015.

Legislative Reforms

The Regulatory Authority continues to review its regulatory
frameworks in order to align the various legal instruments with
international best practices which will improve the Authority’s
capacity to regulate and supervise the non-bank financial sector.
The Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority
(Amendment) Act 2015 and the Insurance Industry Act were
passed by Parliament during the financial year 2015/16 and await
commencement date. The Retirement Funds Act, which replaces
the Pensions and Provident Act was promulgated in August 2014,
and also awaits a commencement order. The Authority further
awaits the commencement date of the Securities Act, 2014 which
replaces the Botswana Stock Exchange Act 1994.

Regional and International Cooperation

The Regulatory Authority capitalizes on its affiliation to various
regional and international standard setting bodies in the regulation
of the financial services sector to adopt best international practices.
This has enabled the Regulatory Authority to keep up with the
latest developments in the non-bank financial services sector and

improve its regulatory processes.

The Authority is a member of International Association of
Insurance Supervisors (IAIS) and International Organisation of
Pension Supervisors (IOPS). The Authority was admitted to the
international organization of securities commissions (IOSCO)
as an associate member in August 2015. At a regional level, the
Authority is a member of Committee on Insurance, Securities
and Non-Banking Financial Authorities (CISNA) where it seats in

various committees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Regulatory Authority is established by
Section | | of the NBFIRA Act Cap 46:08.The Board is responsible
for policy and general administration of the Regulatory Authority,
including ensuring that it adheres to good corporate governance.

The Board is guided by internal governance frameworks such as
the Regulatory Authority’s Board Charter and the Committee’s
Terms of Reference. The framework set out the respective duties
and obligations of the Board and management.

In addition, to the internal governance frameworks, the Regulatory
Authority have adopted the King Ill report on the Code of
Corporate Governance as a guide to assist in adherence to best
International Practices.

BOARD STRUCTURES AND MEMBERSHIPS

Table 2: Board Directors of the Regulatory Authority

Name of Board Member  Date of Appointment  Term
Ms. Mmatlala Dube I'st October 2014 3 years
(re-appointment)
Dr.Tebogo T. K. Matome I'st March 2015 4 years
(re-appointment)
Mr. Modiri Mbaakanyi I'st October 201 | September
30,2015
(end of term)
Ms. Linah K. Mohohlo Ex-officio

Mr. Solomon M. Sekwakwa  Ex-officio
Ms Ludo T. Tema [5th May 2015
Ms Agnes T. Khunwana I'st October 2015

4 years
4 years

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has established the Finance and Audit Committee and
the Human Resources Committee to assist the Board to discharge
its mandate.

Board Committees are comprised as follows:-
Finance and Audit Committee

The Finance and Audit Committee (FAC) provides the Board
with objective advice and assurance regarding the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls; financial stewardship; compliance
with the relevant legislations; risk management; and oversight of
the procurement function in line with delegated responsibilities.
FAC also ensures that the annual financial statements comply

with international standards of reporting and the provisions of
the NBFIRA Act. FAC meets at least four times in each financial
year and its membership during the financial year 2015/2016 was
as follows:-

Name of Board Member Position

I. Dr.T. K K Matome Chairman
2. Mr. S. K. Sekwakwa Member
3. Ms.A.T. Khunwana Member

Human Resource Committee

The function of the Human Resource Committee (HRC) s
to consider and recommend human resources strategy and
supporting policies, organization structure and manpower plans,
remuneration policy and recommendation for appointment of
executive management positions to the Board. HRC meets at least
four times in each financial year and its membership during the
financial year 2015/2016 was as follows:-

Name of Board Member Position

. Ms.L.T. Tema Chairperson

2. Ms. LK. Mohohlo Member
3. Dr.TKK. Matome Member
3. Ms. AT. Khunwana Member

2016 ANNUAL REPORT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont.)

Table 3: Board and Committee Meetings Held During the Financial Year 2015/2016

Ist Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total
Main Board May 13,2015 July 24,2015 Nov 6,2015 Feb 9,2016 7
Sept 23,2015 Dec 15,2015 Mar 29,2016
Human Resource Committee June 4,2015 Aug 13,2015 None Feb 29,2016 3
Finance & Audit Committee Apr 1,2015 Aug 31,2015 None Jan 25,2016
Mar7,2016

Table 4: Attendance Of Board And Committee Meetings During The Financial Year 2015/2016

Board Finance & Audit Human Resource
Ms. M. Dube 717 Not member Not member
DrT.T. K. Matome 6/7 2/4 1/3
Ms. L.K. Mohohlo 217 Not member [/3
Mr. S. Sekwakwa 3/7 4/4 Not member
Mr. M. Mbaakanyi 17 1/4 Not member
Ms. L.T. Tema 6/7 0/4 2/3
Ms. A.T. Khunwana 3/7 1/4 0/3
Table 5: Board Remuneration, Training & Travel Expenses
Name of Board Member Board Fees Training & Travel Expenses
2015 2016 2015 2016
Ms. M. Dube 18,900 21,000 197951 187,543
DrT.T. K. Matome 9,450 6,930 - -
Ms. L. K. Mohohlo 2,520 1,890 - s
Mr. S. Sekwakwa - - - -
Mr. M. Mbaakanyi 5,240 2,940 - -
Ms. L. T.Tema - 10,290 - -
Ms. A.T. Khunwana S 4410 = =
Total Expenses 36,120 47,460 197,951 187,543

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

The Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Board
and administratively to the CEO. The Internal Audit Department
provides the Board with the assurance on risk management, control
and governance processes. It ensures that there is conformance
and compliance to the Authority’s policies and procedures, laws and
regulation as well as compliance to other external requirements

NBFIRA

and best practices. The Internal Audit also reviews the activities of
the Regulatory Authority to ensure effectiveness and compliance
with internal financial and audit control systems and procedures
with the aim of reducing potential risk, protecting the financial
assets of the Regulatory Authority and ensuring optimal utilization
of its financial assets.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (cont.)

NBFIRA Organisational Structure
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEW

NBFIRA

THE AUTHORITY HAS FURTHER DEVELOPED A FINANCIAL
LITERACY STRATEGY WITH THE AIM OF DISSEMINATING
MESSAGES TARGETING DIFFERENT USERS OF FINANCIAL
PRODUCTS TO IMPROVE AWARENESS OF SERVICES AND
PRODUCTS, CONSUMER RIGHTS, AND IMPROVE THE
QUALITY OF FINANCIAL DECISIONS THEY MAKE.

Ramasedi O.M. (Mr.)
Chief Executive Officer

Implementation Of Information Technology
Systems

Risk Based Supervisory System

The Authority completed the implementation of
the information technology system to support
the Risk Based Supervisory Model in May 28th
2015.The system is expected to improve the
Authority’s  regulatory processes following
migration to the risk based supervisory
approach. Efficiencies are anticipated in the
following areas; information exchange with
regulated entities;online licensing of applications;
on-line submission of regulatory returns and
real time assessment and feedback. The system
will further provide early warning signals
about companies which are facing regulatory
challenges and thus enable the Authority to
take appropriate and timely interventions
and in addition, allocate resources optimally
to the entities which require more regulatory
attention.

Enterprise Resource Planning System (ERP)
The implementation of the ERP Oracle System
for the support services started on June Ist
2015 and the implementation is expected to
complete on June 30th 2016. The Authority
opted for a modular implementation approach
as opposed to a big bang to minimize the risks
of system failure. As at the end of the financial
year, the project delivery was in line with
the plan and the following deliverables were
attained; the Intranet (internal communication
system); hardware & infrastructure software;
the human capital management system and the
Payroll system.



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REVIEWV (cont.)

Enforcement Action

The Authority took appropriate action against regulated entities
which breached the financial services laws. The contraventions
by the entities were varied and ranged from failure to submit
regulatory returns, provision of false information to the Authority,
failure to pay supervisory levies and failure to maintain minimum
paid up capital. The penalties for various breaches ranged from
imposition of fines to license suspensions and cancellations. The
action taken by the Authority serves as a deterrence and in addition
ensure the soundness of the non-bank financial sector.

Complaints Management

During the year, the Authority received |73 complaints from the
public being a reduction of 45% from the previous year’s figure
of 313.The complaints against NBFIs were varied and the highest
number was against Micro Lenders where 82 complaints were
received, followed by 66 complaints against Insurers while the rest
were against Retirement Funds. Complaints against Micro Lenders
registered a significant decline from |67 in the previous year to 82
in the current year. Around 30% of the micro-lending complaints
were about excessive interest rates charged for credit or penalty
for late payments. In the Insurance sector, 50% of the claims were
against General Insurance companies and a significant portion
emanated from repudiation of claims (32%) and cancellation
of policies (18%). Complaints against Retirement Funds also
decreased from 42 in the previous year to 25 in the current year
as fewer claims regarding the encashment of deferred pension
benefits were received. The Authority resolved around 75% of the
complaints lodged and determined that the remaining 25 % were
for direct resolution by the regulated entities.

The Authority realised that most of the complainants did not
understand the financial services and products offered by the
regulated entities and has, to this end, intensified public education
in order to increase the public's appreciation of the services and
products offered by the entities. The complainants have also been
encouraged to first resolve the complaints with the regulated
entities before escalating them to the Authority and this seems
to have had a positive effect as fewer complaints were received
across all the sectors.

Stakeholder Engagements

Consultative meetings were held with some sectors of the regulated
entities to offer them an opportunity to contribute towards the
revision of some legislative frameworks. These meetings were
fruitful as the entities contributed positively towards the review
of relevant legislation. In addition, the Regulatory Authority has
commenced consultations on the development of a regulatory
framework for medical aid funds industry, micro lending and
finance and leasing companies.

The Regulatory Authority collaborates with other organization
in pursuance of matters of common interests. The Authority is
represented in the national working group on financial inclusion
and contributes towards the attainment of financial inclusion in the
working committee’s terms of reference. The Authority has further
developeda Financial Literacy Strategy with the aim of disseminating
messages targeting different users of financial products to improve
awareness of services and products, consumer rights, and improve
the quality of financial decisions they make.

Training and Development

The Regulatory Authority is committed to up skilling staff
competencies in order to meet its mandate and strategic plan
objectives and initiatives. Employees have been trained in both
technical and soft skills to improve internal capacity. Training takes
the form of formal classroom based, enrolment in seminars and
attachments to more mature regulatory authorities.

Public Education
The Authority held financial
the country, where key messages on financial products and

literacy campaigns throughout

services offered by the regulated entities were simplified for
better appreciation and understanding by the consumers. These
campaigns enabled the public to make informed decisions when
dealing with the regulated entities and this in turn reduced the
number of complaints received by the Authority. The Authority will
continue to hold joint campaigns with other organizations in order
to reach out to the wider public.
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STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION

STRATEGY AND INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS OFFICE

The Department is responsible for facilitating and coordinating
the development, review and implementation of the Regulatory
Authority’s strategy. The Department further interfaces with
international and regional standards setting bodies and tracks the
implementation of the set standards and principles.

The 2013 To 2016 Strategic Plan
The Regulatory Authority is in the final phase of implementing the
Strategic Plan 2013 - 2016 which comes to an end on March 31,

2016. In the interim, the Board is embarked on crafting Strategic
Plan 2016 —2021.

Significant progress was made in implementing the Strategic Plan
which focused on eight (8) objectives based on the Balanced
Scorecard framework as depicted on Table | below:

Table 6: Strategic Objectives by Perspective

Perspective No
Stakeholder Perspective ;
Learning & Growth Perspective i
Financial Perspective 5:
Process Perspective ?
8.

Strategy Implementation

Strategic Objective

Improve Stakeholder engagement

Promote Public Awareness

Promote a High Performance Culture

Improve Employee Competency

Institutionalise prudent financial management

Promote Corporate Governance

Improve Risk Management

Develop and Implement Technology and Enhance Processes

As at 31st March 2016, the strategy implementation progress was rated at 78%. The following achievements in implementing various

initiatives are notable:

Table 7: Strategic Implementation Progress as at March 31,2016

Perspective Strategic Objective

Stakeholder Perspective Improve Stakeholder

Engagement

Initiatives
* Industry and bilateral meetings were held with entities across all the sectors
* The Regulatory Authority consulted with the industry pertaining to changes to

the regulatory framework.

* A Stakeholder Confidence Survey was undertaken to determine the

stakeholder confidence index. The Regulatory Authority has put interventions

in place to address gaps identified by the survey.

Promote Public

Awareness

» Consumer education events were held throughout the country to improve
public awareness on NBFIRA's regulatory mandate and its service offerings.

* A Stakeholder Awareness Survey was also undertaken to determine the level

of stakeholder awareness. Interventions have been put in place to address

gaps emanating from the survey.

Learning & Growth Promote a High

Perspective Performance Culture

* The Regulatory Authority developed and implemented various policy
initiatives during the review period inter alia; Talent Management, Change

Management, and the Communications Strategy

Improve Employee

Competency

* The consultancy to develop a competency framework & job profiles is on-
going and this is aimed to improve employee competency in executing their

functions. The project is expected to be completed during April 2016 and the

deliverables are:

a. Employee competency assessments report detailing current skills/fcompetency

levels versus the required skills/competency levels and recommending

interventions to close the identified skills gap.

b. Alignment of job descriptions for all current positions in the NBFIRA structure

into competency profiles per position to identify required key competencies &

skills

NBFIRA



STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION (cont.)

Table 7: Summary of Achievements in Implementing Various Initiatives as at March 31,2016 (continued)

Perspective Strategic Objective

Financial Perspective Institutionalize
Prudent Financial
Management
Process Perspective Promote Corporate

Governance

Improve Risk

Management

Develop &
Implement
Technology and

Enhance Processes

International And Regional Collaboration

Initiatives
* The Regulatory Authority has adopted a zero based budgeting approach and

ensures prudent financial management.

The Regulatory Authority has a non-executive Board and supporting
Committees. The Board Charter and Committee Terms of Reference are
documented and complied with.

The Board also signed a shareholder compact with the Ministry of Finance &
Development Planning on September 15, 2015.

The Regulatory Authority implemented the Risk Based Supervisory System.
Apart from the ability to conduct risk profiling of the entities, thus enabling the
Regulatory Authority to focus attention on those areas which present high risk,

the system also allows entities to submit their financial returns online.

An internal Risk Management Framework and Policy has been developed and

presented to the Board for approval.

The Regulatory Authority continued to implement modules of the ERP IT
system in a phased approach. The system provides for the automation Human
Capital Management, Payroll, Financial Management and supporting tools being
Business Intelligence and Intranet. The project is expected to be completed

in June 30th 2016.The integration of information across departments will

improve operational efficiency.

The global nature and interconnectedness of financial markets
allow systemic risks to be transmitted across borders, thus
requiring coordinated action by national, regional and international
supervisors. Local and International cooperation thus becomes
critical as it provides the foundation for an open, fair and sound
domestic financial services sector.  The Regulatory Authority
ensures effective cooperation by entering into Memorandum of

Understanding (MOUs) with relevant authorities and affiliating to
various international standard setting bodies.

(i) Memorandum of Understandings

The Regulatory Authority has entered into MOUs with various local,
regional and international Regulatory bodies as per Table 8 below:

Table 8: Memorandum of Understanding (MOUs)

Local Regional International
|. Bank of Botswana I. Committee for Insurance, Securities & Non-Banking Authorities, SADC  |. Securities &
(CISNA) Exchange Board

2. Botswana Unified Revenue Services

of India

2. Commissao Mercado De Capitais of the Republic of Angola

3. Botswana Accounting Oversight Authority 3. Financial Services Board (South Africa)

4. Competition Authority Botswana
5. Financial Intelligence Agency

4. The Office of the Registrar of Insurance & Retirement Funds (Swaziland)
5. Financial Services Commission (Mauritius)
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STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION (cont.)

(i) Membership of International Standard Setting Bodies

To further ensure efficient and effective regulation in line with
international best practice, the Regulatory Authority is also a
member of the following standard setting bodies:

(2) The International Organisation of Securities Commissions
(10SCO)

IOSCO is an international standard setting body that is charged
with developing, implementing and promoting adherence to
internationally recognized standards for securities regulation. The
Regulatory Authority was admitted to the IOSCO membership
in August 2015 as an associate member, and by extension also
became a member of the Africa Middle East Regional Committee
(AMERC), a subcommittee of IOSCO that focuses on issues of
securities in the emerging and growing markets.

The Regulatory Authority attended the 40th Annual Conference of
|IOSCO held in London, United Kingdom in June 2015 as well as
the IOSCO Growth & Emerging Markets Committee meeting in
Jakarta, Indonesia in January 2016.

(b) The International Organisation of Pension Supervisors
(IOPS)

IOPS is an international standard setting body charged with
improving the quality and effectiveness of the supervision of
pension systems throughout the world, thereby enhancing their
development and operational efficiency, and allowing for the
provision of a secure source of retirement income in as many
countries as possible.

To this end, the Regulatory Authority has participated in a number
of IOPS conventions including the Annual General Meeting and
the OECD/IOPS Global Forum on Private Pensions which were
both held in Germany in October 2015.

(c) The International Association of Insurance Supervisors
(IAIS)

IAIS aims to promote effective and globally consistent supervision
of the insurance industry in order to develop and maintain fair,
safe and stable insurance markets for the benefit and protection
of policy holders, and to contribute to global financial stability.
The Regulatory Authority participated in scheduled IAIS forums,
including the 22nd Annual Conference held in the Morocco in
November 2015.

(d) The Committee for Insurance, Securities & Non-Banking
Authorities (CISNA)

CISNA is made up of non-banking financial institutions authorities

from the SADC region and reports to the SADC Committee

of Ministers of Finance and Investment through the Committee

for Senior Treasury Officials. Its aim is to promote and maintain

financial stability and growth in the SADC region through a sound,

NBFIRA

harmonised regulatory framework and effective supervision of
non-banking financial institutions. The Regulatory Authority sits in
various committees and participates in working groups of CISNA
with the latest being the 34th and 35th Bi-Annual Conferences
which were held in April 2015 and October 2015 respectively. The
Regulatory Authority also participated in the Micro Insurance Forum
and Strategic Planning & Performance Review Committee meeting
which were held in April 2015 and August 2015, respectively.

(e) The Eastern and Southern Africa Anti Money Laundering
Group (ESAAMLG)

EESAAMLG is a regional organisation founded to combat money
laundering through implementation of anti-money laundering
strategies on member countries. The main objective of ESAAMLG
is to combat money laundering by implementing the Financial
Action Task Force (FATF) recommendations with particular focus
on the Eastern and Southern Africa regions.

The Regulatory Authority attended the 30th Task Force of Senior
Officials meetings held in August 2015 in South Africa. The
Regulatory Authority also participates through accession to the set
obligations particularly the 40 FATF recommendations.

Staff Participation in Working Committees of International
Standard Setting Bodies

As a member of the above mentioned international standard
setting bodies, the Regulatory Authority, through its staff, participates
in their working committees from time to time. While these
engagements expose the staff to best practices, they also ensures
the Regulatory Authority participates in multilateral agreements . As
depicted in Table below, the Regulatory Authority is involved in a
number of committees in different capacities.



STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION (cont.)

Table 9: The Regulatory Authority’s Participation in International Standard Setting Bodies Working Committees

Standard Setting

Committee

No. of meetings

Portfolio

Lessons for NBFIRA i.e. proposed/

Bodies

CISNA

ESAAMLG

IOPS

Capital Markets
Sub-Committee

AML/CFT Technical
Committee

Insurance,
Retirement Funds,
Medical Schemes &
Intermediaries
Subcommittee

Expert Review
Working Group

Executive
Committee

Technical committee

2015/16

Chaired by NBFIRA staff
member 2013 - 2015
Facilitation of
harmonization of Capital
Markets in line with
|IOSCO standards

Review member states
reports on AML/CFT
compliance to FATF
recommendations on

periodic basis

Member of a Working
Group within the
committee.

Appointed to Review the
Mutual Evaluation Review
of Zimbabwe.

Designs the Work
Programme of IOPS,
setting the strategic
direction, facilitating
research and Technical
Papers on issues of
common interest to IOPS
Members

Research and publication
of technical papers for
policy advice to IOPS

Governing Members.

implemented recommendations

The harmonised qualification from CISNA
proposed qualifications were used as a
guide for the draft regulations for Capital
Market intermediaries which have been
submitted to MFDP

NBFIRA to provide input on AML/CFT

licensing and registration by April 2017, in
line with developing licensing framework
for NBFIs within SADC to enhance cross

border operations.

Currently drafting legislation on common
products like third party motor vehicle
insurance and Regional Transit Customs
Bond Guarantee to be harmonised in the

region

The structure of the Executive
Committee gives NBFIRA an added
voice in designing the Work Programme
of IOPS and Technical Matters for
consideration by the IOPS Governing
Members that are directly relevant to
NBFIRA

Recently adopted key supervisory

recommendations relate to:

* Supervisory strategies for Large Pension
Funds

» Consumer protection for pension fund
members

* Supervisory approaches in regulating
annuity providers

* Supervisory approaches in regulating

non — traditional investment managers.
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LEGAL AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT

Compliance Department is responsible for providing legal services
and enforcement of Financial Services Laws to the Regulatory
Authority and the provision of secretariat services to the Board
and its committees.

The Regulatory Authority derives its powers of enforcement from
the NBFIRA Act and other related financial services laws, and in
the period under review, it carried out the following enforcement

actions:

Table 9a: Enforcement Actions during the Financial Year 2015/16

Date of Enforcement Entity

l. June 1,2015 Motswedi Securities

2. July 14,2015 Fincraft (Pty) Ltd

3. July 17,2015 Sureway (Pty) Ltd

4. August 28,2015 Peoboswa
Insurance Brokers
(Pty) Ltd

5. November 4, 2015 Venture Partners
Botswana

6. November 9,2015 Blue Employee
Benefits (Pty) Ltd

7. December 16,2015 Botswana Public
Officers Pension Fund

Legislation

The Regulatory Authority is also responsible for facilitating the
development and production of the layman's drafts of its Legal
and Governance frameworks.

The following legislation was passed by Parliament during the
financial year 2015/16 and awaits commencement date:

*  The Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory (NBFIRA)
Amendment Act; and
* Insurance Industry Act

Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs)
The Regulatory Authority facilitates cooperation with other sector
regulators and strategic partners through drafting, negotiating

Contravention

* Failure to appoint two
independent directors

* Failure to submit audited
financial statements

* Failure to maintain
minimum paid-up capital

* Failure to maintain
proper trust accounts

* Provision of false
information to NBFIRA
regarding premiums
owed to insurers

* Failure to pay
supervisory levies

* Failure to maintain
minimum paid-up capital

* Failure to maintain
proper trust accounts

* Failure to remit
premiums to insurers

* Failure to pay
supervisory levies

* Failure to submit audited
financial statements

* Failure to submit audited
financial statements

Failure to submit audited
financial statement

Enforcement Action taken
Fine: P10,000.00

Fine: P10,000.00

Non-renewal
of license

Non-renewal
of license

Fine: P10,000.00

Fine: P35,000.00

Fine: P5,000.00

and signing of Memoranda of Understandings to collaboratively
address issues of mutual concern. During the financial year
2015/16,a memorandum of understanding was entered into with
the Financial Intelligence Agency (FIA) on the 5th October 2015.

Board Secretariat Services

In its provision of secretariat services to the Board and its
committees, the Regulatory Authority advises and ensures
compliance to good corporate governance practices. In addition,
the Board Secretariat maintains a record of Board deliberations
and resolutions.



CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

HUMAN RESOURCES & ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT

The Department has a dual role of facilitating the Human Capital
Management and providing Administrative Services to the
Regulatory Authority.

Human Capital Management

In line with the Regulatory Authority’s strategic objectives of
promoting a high performance culture and improving employee
competency, the Regulatory Authority realized that its ability
to deliver on the above objectives and its overall mandate is
dependent on its people. This became a priority area which
required a disciplined and focused approach to human capital
management and the progressive development of a strong talent
base that will provide the foundation for the Regulatory Authority’s
projected growth.

Staffing

The Regulatory Authority continued to grow in order to meet its
mandate of regulating and enforcing compliance within the non-
bank financial sector. The Regulatory Authority’s staff complement
has grown by 17% from 68 employees in the previous financial year
to 82 as at March 31st 201 6. From the 82 employees, the majority
at 54% are between the ages 24 and 35 years (Generation ), 38%
are Generation X (between 36 and 51 years) while only 8% are
Baby boomers (52 years old and more).

The staff complement included only two (2) expatriate at
executive management positions owing to shortage of experience
regulators within the economy. Females accounted for 54% of
the staff complement which is in line with the national profile.
The Regulatory Authority recorded an attrition rate of 5% for the
financial year 2015/2016 which was within acceptable levels.

Figure 1: Age Analysis

Generations
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Learning and Development

In an effort to build requisite skills, geared at improving individual
and organizational performance, the Regulatory Authority continues
to offer employees both technical and soft skills training.

During the review period, twelve (12) employees were enrolled on
the Stellenbosch University Management Development Program,
to further develop their supervisory and managerial disposition.
Management and supervisory team of twenty six (26) concluded
Investment in Excellence (IIE) program that is aimed at supporting
the Regulatory Authority’s leadership and cultural transformation as
well as change management initiatives. .

In its effort to build capacity in regulatory and supervisory skills,
the Regulatory Authority continued to expose staff to international
best practices in the regulatory environment through attachments
to other mature regulatory authorities, enrolment in training
programs and participation in seminars and conferences. As
depicted in figure 2 below, Conferences and meetings, followed
by short term training, constituted the largest and second largest
share of capacity building initiatives. The chart below presents a
summary of training programmes and the number of staff who
attended during the review period.

Figure 2: Capacity Building by Type of Programme

Capacity Building by Type of
Programme
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Development Of The Nbfira Competency Framework

The Regulatory Authority is currently developing a competency
framework which is one of the key pillars from the Talent
Management Strategy geared towards building a high performance
organisation. The projects involves developing job profiles for all
positions and undertaking competency assessments for staff. The
project will enable the Regulatory Authority to identify and prioritise
required skills for the Regulatory Authority to operate optimally.



CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION (cont.)

The competency assessments will identify existing skills gaps and
recommend appropriate interventions to close the gaps through
learning and development.

The framework once complete, will also be used in assessing for
recruitment, succession planning and promotion.

Staff Engagement

The Regulatory Authority participated in the Deloitte’s Best
Company to Work for Survey. The Survey is intended to assist
the Regulatory Authority measure the level of engagement
and determine appropriate interventions to improve areas of
concern. The engagement level is attained by measuring ten (10)
dimensions which include sense of confidence, job satisfaction,
inclusion, operational effectiveness, relationship with supervisor,
ethics & integrity, work life balance, performance & recognition,
career development and remuneration.

The Regulatory Authority obtained an overall score of 3.54 (Positive
/ Favourable Rating) and this translates to a staff engagement level
70.85% being an improvement from the 69.6% recorded last year.

The improvement in the level of engagement is attributable to the
various Human Resource interventions which include improved
General Conditions of Service which increased focus on staff
welfare, Office Refurbishing, introduction of IT systems (Enterprise
Resource Planning and Risk Based Supervision System) and
various training and development initiatives. The Regulatory
Authority will continue to undertake initiatives to address lowly
scoring dimensions in order to improve the survey index.

Staff Wellness And Social Responsibility

During the year, the Regulatory Authority embarked on various
initiatives to improve staff wellbeing aimed at enhancing staff
performance. Some of the activities included presentations by a
motivational speaker; a dietician, a physiotherapist and a personal
financial planner: The Regulatory Authority collaborated with Blood
Donation Botswana as part of social responsibility to donate blood
in order to save lives.

COMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS (CPA)
DEPARTMENT

The CPA is tasked with providing clear and accurate information
about NBFIRA to its internal and external stakeholders. This
includes providing information about core services and utilizing
opportunities to enhance the image of the organization. The
Regulatory Authority has developed a Communications Strategy

which is aimed at enhancing and improving internal and external
stakeholder engagements.

Stakeholder Engagement Activities

During the financial year 2015/16, a number of initiatives included
were undertaken in order to disseminate information about
the Regulatory Authority and its service offerings. The activities
included interactive sessions with the public, school presentations,
distribution of financial literacy materials to the community,
financial literacy presentations, and participation in trade fairs and
exhibitions to raise consumer awareness.

Roadshows were held across the country with a view of educating
consumers on financial products and services to make informed
decisions when transacting with regulated entities. Table |0 below
shows the areas where the Regulatory Authority held financial
literacy campaigns.

Table 10: Activities Undertaken in the Financial Year 2016/7

Place Activity Dates

Botho College 25th -31st May 2015
26th-28th July 2015
6th-14th August 2015

Hukuntsi, Maun and Ghanzi.
Tlokweng District Council and
Tlokweng Bus Rank

Botswana Trade Fair

Verda, Tsabong and Middlepits
Bobonong and Selibe- Phikwe
Mochudi

Gumare, Seronga, and Shakawe
Middlepits and Tsabong

Sowa, Nata and Kasane.

23rd -31st August 2015
23rd-26th September 2015
26th- 27th October 2015
|9th December 2015

20th -22nd January 2016

I I1th- 12th February 2016
| 5th-19th February 2016

Stakeholder Surveys

Improving  Stakeholder Engagement and Promoting Public
awareness remains a key strategic objective for the NBFIRA
Strategic Plan 2013 — 2016. The Regulatory Authority attained a
Stakeholder Awareness Index of 57.6% against a target of 65%. The
Regulatory Authority is currently undertaking interventions aimed
at addressing areas where it did not perform satisfactorily and
these interventions include improving complaints management
and communication and dialogue with the regulated entities.

Website and Social Media Campaigns

The Regulatory Authority continues to use the website to convey
information about its mandate and it is also used to publish
statutory notices and events. It also serves as an interactive tool
which facilitates exchange of feedback between the public and
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CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION (cont.)

Website and Social Media Campaigns (continued)

the Regulatory Authority. The revamped website is now able to
interface with cell phones, tablets and iPads which enables users
to directly log their complaints/queries into the complaints portal.

The Regulatory Authority website statistical analysis was initiated
following the re-design, to determine the Audience Overview
from December 2015 to March 2016. Analysis is determined by
numbers of Users, Sessions and Page views with an increasing and
satisfactory trend.

Table I1: The NBFIRA Website Audience during the Year ended March
31,2016

2015-2016 SESSIONS USERS PAGEVIEWS
December 1,437 1,044 4,801
January 2,260 1,388 8,138
February 2,277 1,421 8,975

March 2,737 1,761 10,450

The Regulatory Authority also uses social media (NBFIRA Facebook)
to share information and receive enquiries. Usage of the Facebook
page has increased due to the publishing of regulatory and
consumer financial education messages. A record number of 8753
visited the Regulatory Authority’s Facebook page between the
months of December 2015 and March 2016. Consumer education
activities are increasingly getting high and a significant interest on
public notices and cautionary messages.

The Regulatory Authority has in addition developed the intranet to
improve internal communication. The intranet known as “Lekgotla”
also acts as a central repository for shared documents improving
efficiency in documents retrieval and storage.

NBFIRA

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT (ITD)

The core function of the ITD is to support the Regulatory
Authority’s operations with provision, maintenance and support of
appropriate IT infrastructure.

IT Infrastructure and Security

The Regulatory Authority through the implementation of the
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System implemented a blade
server technology. This was to improve processing power and
server manageability. The Regulatory Authority will in future move
all its systems such as Risk Based Supervision System to be under
the same server technology.

The Regulatory Authority also enhanced its IT Disaster Management
by setting up a new offsite Disaster Recovery Centre at Phakalane
Data Centre which ensures minimal disruption to service should
a disaster happen. The Disaster recovery centre is operating
optimally and is being tested on a periodic basis to ensure full
functionality. A dedicated fibre connectivity has been set between
the primary site and the Disaster Recovery centre.

Implementation of the Management Information Systems

Risk Based Supervision System (RBSS)

The Regulatory Authority has implemented The Risk Based
Supervision System (RBSS) to improve its supervisory and
regulatory functions. The system has a data management centre
and also allows entities to submit their returns online. The RBSS
went live in August 2015 following rigorous training of internal
users and the staff of the regulated entities.

This system has greatly enhanced the data handling capability of
the Regulatory Authority. It is now able to identify areas of risk and
thus proactively regulate and prioritise regulatory activities. All the
sectors are now submitting their returns using the system except
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for retirement funds which are still to resolve the responsibilities
of managing the returns on the system. However the Regulatory
Authority is still to realize the full benefits for transactional data as
a full cycle of the submissions has not been realized.

Enterprise Resource Planning System (ERP)

The Regulatory Authority has implemented an Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP) System for the integration of its systems to
operational efficiency. The system will automate the Human
Resources processes and migrate Payroll and Finance from the
legacy standalone systems. The Regulatory Authority will also
implement a business intelligence system which will enhance the
reporting capability of the system. The Regulatory Authority as well
implement an Intranet as an internal communication tool. The
ERP will integrate with the existing business system (Risk Based
Supervision System).The project implementation commenced on
June Ist 2015 and it is due to be completed on June 30th 201 6.

As at the end of the financial year, the implementation of the
system was in accordance with the implementation plan and the
Human Capital Management System, Payroll and the Intranet were
live while the Financial Management System was undergoing User
Acceptance Testing.

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

The Department is charged with coordination and control of
the financial activities of the Regulatory Authority. The finance
department's core responsibility is to develop an effective and
efficient system of internal control, safeguarding the Authority’s
assets, coordination and control of the budgetary process,
preparation of the annual financial statement, coordination of
the external audit, disbursement and collection of supervisory
levies from regulated entities. The department also account for
subventions received from Government and related expenditure
transactions.

Financial Performance

The Regulatory Authority recorded a net deficit of P13.4 million in
the financial year 2015/2016,compared with a deficit of P1.7 million
in the financial year 2014/2015 as costs increased significantly by
28.6% and a modest revenue increase of 8.6% was recorded. The
Regulatory Authority remains a going concern despite the deficit
reported during the year.

Revenue
Total revenue was P50.6 million being an increase of 8.6% when
compared P46.4 million recorded in the previous year as a result

of increase in supervisory levies and armotisation of Government
grants. Supervisory Levies amounted to P33.8 million being an
increase of 13% from P29.9 million recorded in the previous
year as a result of the growth in the sector as the Supervisory
Levies rates remained constant over the two (2) year period.
The Authority received Government Subvention funding of P17.0
million compared to P18.0 million in previous year.

Total Expenditure

Total expenditure was P65.4 million, being a significant increase of
28.6% or P14.6 million when compared to P50.8 million recorded
in the previous financial yearThe increase in total expenditure was
primarily attributable to increase in staff costs and administrative
expenses. Staff costs increased significantly as the Authority
accelerated recruitment and filled most of the vacant positions
resulting in an increase in staff count from 69 in the previous year
to 82 in the current year. Administration expenses also increased
significantly from P9.7 million in the previous year to P13.6
million as a result armotisation of the Information Technology
System to support the Risk-Based Regulatory Model which was
commissioned during the year under review. Administration
expenses increased due to consultancy fees for the development
of medical aid regulations and the formulation of the 2016/21
strategic plan.

Statement of Financial Position

The fair value of the Regulatory Authority’s property, plant and
equipment as at 31st March 2016 increased to P6.5 million from
P6.2 million in the prior year due to acquisition of a motor vehicle,
information technology equipment and furniture & fittings.

Work in progress as at 3Ist March 2016 was Pl 1.2 million
compared to P10.9 million in the financial year 2014/2015. The
work in progress relates to the expenditure incurred towards the
development of the information technology systems. During the
year the Risk-Based Regulatory Model system was commissioned
at a value of P13.8 million, while the ERP system was work-in-
progress as at year end, valued at P .2 million.

Statement of Cash flow

The Regulatory Authority’s liquidity position remained stable during
the financial year under review. The bank balance as at 3|st March
2016 amounted to P26.5 million compared to P48.3 million in
the previous year, being a decrease of P21.8 million. The decline
in bank balance was due to the expenditure incurred towards the
development of the IT systems, capital expenditure and operating
expenditure. The Statutory Reserve is maintained at P5.7 million,
and no appropriation was done in the current year as this reserve
was compliant with Section 22(2) of the NBFIRA Act.
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GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT, REGULATORY AND

SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES IN 2015/16

RESEARCH DEPARTMENT

The Research Department is responsible for coordination of
market intelligence within the NBFI sector specifically for the
purpose of accurate and timely reporting in order to inform
policy formulation and evaluation as well as facilitate strategic and
operational decision making.

Global Economic Overview

During the year ended March 31, 2016, a slow growth and low
inflation macro-economic environment in both the domestic
and global financial markets was experienced. As at December
31,2015, the global economic recovery continued to be subdued
at 3.1 percent, being marginally lower than the 3.4 percent
recorded in 2014. The subdued economic recovery was primarily
attributable to continued mixed economic growth activity
recorded in advanced economies, coupled with continued decline
in growth for emerging markets and developing economies over
the past five consecutive years. Real GDP growth for emerging
markets and developing economies declined to 4 percent in 2015
from 4.6 percent in 2014. This unresponsive economic activity is
influenced by weaker investment growth in China, as the economy
continues to rebalance from investment and manufacturing based
to consumption and services. Looking ahead, there exist downside
risks to global growth, mainly due to a slowdown in emerging
markets economies, lower commodity prices and the slowdown
and rebalancing of Chinese economy.

Figure 3: Global Real GDP Growth forYear —ending December 31
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The world inflation was restrained at 2.9 percent in 2015 and
was unchanged from the previous year. This was mainly due to
the subdued commodity prices and modest global demand.
Against this background, central banks from both the advanced
and developing economies maintained accommodative monetary
policy, providing for liquidity in the financial sector, save for the US

NBFIRA

Federal reserve bank who raised its bank interest rate by 0.25
percent on December 16,2015. The Fed move marked the start
of its tightening cycle since 2004 and drove the dollar higher.

Domestic Economic Overview

Domestic economic growth slowed down to - 0.3 percent in
2015, from 3.2 percent in the prior year The contraction in GDP
was influenced by poor diamond sales as a result of the cutback
in diamond production. The gloomy diamond market state also
led to a decline in exports, a large balance of trade deficit and a
drawdown of the foreign exchange reserves.

Figure 4: Domestic Real GDP Growth for Year —ending December 3|
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Domestic Inflation and Interest Rate Developments

Inflation continued to decline, for the fourth consecutive year
ending 2015 at an annual average rate of 3.0 percent, compared
to an annual average rate of 4.4 in the prior year This decline
can be attributed to low demand pressures, reduction in fuel
prices and low external inflationary pressures. During the year
monetary policy remained accommodative and the Bank rate
was reduced by a cumulative 150 basis points to 6 percent.

Figure 5: Domestic Inflation and Interest Rates for the Year —ending December
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GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT, REGULATORY AND

SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES IN 2015/16 (cont.)

Table 12 below presents domestic macroeconomic indicators
used throughout the report to put the results into context and to
evaluate the market impact of respective industries and businesses
sectors.

Importance and Role of the Non- Bank Financial Sector in
Botswana

During the year ended December 31, 2015 the Non-Bank
Financial Institutions (NBFIs) sector continued to dominate the

Botswana financial sector with a market share of 57 percent of
the total assets (compared with 55 % in 2014), refer to Table |3
below. Total assets growth of the NBFls sector was |7 % and
thus outpaced growth in the banking sector which grew by |3

Table 12: Selected Botswana Annual Macro-Economic Indicators

lueliezior 2ol 205 percent. The former was largely driven by a significant increase in
fleal U7 A foele e assets of retirement funds. The retirement funds grew significantly
Nominal GBP E(M”) |42466.1 45,7262 by 24 % from P59.4 billion in the previous year to P73.9 billion
CPI (End of period %) 38 3 in the current year The growth in retirement funds assets was
CPI (Average %) 44 3.0 , , , ,

Bk e & 5 5 largely attributable t9 a sterling pefformance in the offéhgre equity
Prime rate % 90 75 markets, together with currency gains from the depreciation of the

Pula against major trading currencies.

Assets of the NBFI sector when expressed as a percentage of the

Figure 6: Structure of the Non-Bank Financial Institutions by Industry in
2015/16

Gross Domestic Product at market prices was over 60%. This
continues to underscore the importance of the sector in the
economy. In turn, a well-developed and properly regulated NBF
sector is thus an important component of a broad, balanced and
efficient financial system. It will spread risks and provide a sound

base for economic growth, through pension savings, investments,

and wealth creation. It is on this background that the Regulatory
Non-Bank
Lenders

(286)

Investments
Institutions

(122)

Insurance
(274)

Pensions
Industry
(89)

Capital
Markets

(13)

Authority has emphasized a strong and proactive supervisory
approach as a core of fulfilling its mandate.

Table 13: Structure of the Botswana Financial System, December 31.

2014
P’ Million

2015
P’ Million

2015
% of Total

Annual
% Change

Number of
institutions

Type of Financial

Institution

Commercial Banks [l 68,018 76,721 388 12.8
Statutory Banks*2 3 6,688 7493 38 120
Banking Sector 14 74,706 84,214 42.6 12.7
Life Insurance 9 19,658 19,467 99 -1.0
General Insurance 12 1711 1783 09 42
Re-Insurer 3 193 234 0.1 21.2
Investment Institutions *3 7918 6,052 3.1 -23.6
AUM for Retail & n/a 3810 7,194 36 88.8
Private*4
Retirement Funds 87 59,392 73,845 374 24.3
Capital Markets 6 15 214 0.1 85.9
Micro Lenders (Top 20)*5 20 2,892 3,305 1.7 4.3
Others (Estimate)*6 >250 1,340 1,226 0.6 -85
Non-Bank Sector 97,029 113,323 574 16.8
Financial Sector Grand Total* | | 71,735 197,537 100 |5.0

Note:
*| The financial system figures excludes the Bank of Botswana, MVAF, BDC, SACCOS and the IFSC whose total assets were estimated at Pula
91,576.2 Million in 2015.
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GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT, REGULATORY AND

SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES IN 2015/16 (cont.

2014
P’ Million

Financial Institution

Bank of Botswana (Central bank) 79,6899
Botswana Development Corporation 2,060.3
Motor Vehicle Accident Fund 3454.1
SACCOS and IFSC (estimate) 0.5
Total 85,204.8

2015 Year —on-Year
P’ Million Percent Change
85431.1 7.2
2,281.3 10.7
3,864.1 12
0.5 -
91,576.2 7.5

*2  Includes: Botswana Savings bank (P 1, 766 million), National Development Bank (P 1, 462 million) and Botswana Building Society (P4, 264 million).
*3  Investment Institutions figures reflects own company assets for Asset Managers (12) and Mancos (5).

*4  Assets managed by Investment Institutions on behalf of retail and private clients.

*5  Top 20 Micro Lenders by portfolio value.

*6  Includes Medical Aid Funds (P838 million- 2014 and P842 million- 2015); Insurance Brokers (P375 million — 2014 and 387 million - 2015),
Micro Lenders other than top 20 by portfolio values; Pawn shops, Finance and Leasing Companies.

Regulatory Framework

The regulatory framework of NBFIRA entails regulation of entry
and exit of NBFls through licensing; supervision and monitoring of
compliance to statutes; and regulation of market practices as well
as regulation of amalgamations, transfers of businesses, and winding
up of the non-bank financial institutions. The Regulatory Authority
also has powers of enforcement of financial services laws through
imposition of administrative penalties or applications to the High
Courts for enforcement actions such as statutory management
and liquidation. Furthermore, the Regulatory Authority has powers
relating to the oversight of the global businesses providing non-
bank financial services under the Botswana Investment and Trade
Centre (BITC).

NBFIRA Supervisory Approach and Process

The RegulatoryAuthority utilizes both on-site and off-site supervisory
processes to undertake its mandate; and with the latter providing
early warning signals for pro-active regulatory actions. The annual
work plans are geared towards supporting migration to risk based
supervision by allocating more resources to entities that are
perceived to carry the highest risk to the overall market integrity
and the protection of consumers.

NBFIRA

The Regulatory Authority has adopted a robust regulatory approach
embracing risk scoring methodology, oversight, inspections,
investigations and enforcement actions. The off-site process
combines the qualitative and quantitative information to profile
and rate the entities according to the likelihood of identified risks.
The risk scoring methodology provides for the determination
of a supervisory attention index; this together with qualitative
comments determine the frequency of on-site visits, the focus
of the visits, the type of on-site review, the type of inspection,
prudential visits, the use of specific regulatory tools and reporting
requirements. There a four types of on-site reviews, namely:-
Routine Inspections; Special Inspections; Thematic Inspections; and
Prudential Visits.

The scope and depth of each review is tailor made to suit the
particular circumstances of a regulated entity, thereby maximizing
the effectiveness of supervisory process.

During the review period, the respective regulatory departments
conducted compliance activities and in collaboration with the
Compliance Department enforced compliance to statutes and
levying of penalties as summarized below.



GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT, REGULATORY AND

SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES IN 2015/16 (cont.

Figure 7: Summary of Compliance and Enforcement Activities during the Year ending March 31,2016
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Licensing of the NBFls

The sector continued to grow due to eighty-one (81) new entrants
into the market as well as the introduction of new products. The
increase in the number of non-bank financial institutions improves
competition and diversity of products in the market which is
a positive development to customers as they are now able to
make an informed choice of products and services at competitive
prices. Some regulated entities have been issued with letters
of exemptions from licensing pending the promulgation of the
relevant industry regulations and are subject to payment of levies.

The Statement of Financial Position of the NBFI Sector
Figure 8 below shows the structure of the statement of financial

30

40 50 60 70 80 90

position of the NBFls in terms of total assets, total capital and
total liabilities, excluding insurance brokers, retirement and medical
aid funds. Evidently, the structure remained unchanged during the
review period, save for the Capital Market and Lending Activities
industries. In the Capital Markets, the share of capital to assets
contracted significantly as a result of a mismatch in assets and
capital growth rates of 86% and 26%, respectively. This emanated
from a significant recording of trade receivables and trade payables
of securities broker companies, which was perceived to be
temporary. These companies would need to be closely monitored
to restore solvency, if need be. In the Lending Industry, the share
of capital increased as new capital was injected in the industry.

Figure 8: Composite Statements of Financial Position of NBFIs for the Year ending December 3|
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GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT, REGULATORY AND

SUPERVISORY ACTIVITIES IN 2015/16 (cont.)

Figure 9 below presents own company balance sheet and
retirement funds’assets. During the review period, the NBFl sector
recorded a mixed growth in assets, with Capital Markets, Lending
and Retirements Funds recording growth rates of 86%, 14% and
24%, respectively. The Insurance industry’s growth was unchanged
while Investment Institutions recorded a decline of 24%.

The slack in financial performance of the NBFIs sector; was also
recorded in AUM by Investment Institutions, which fell by 19%
from P62 billion in previous year to P50 billion in 2015.

Figure 9: Total Assets of NBFls for the Year ending December 3|
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Electronic Financial Services Product Innovation

Product innovation in the non-bank sector continued to grow,
which is a welcome development, as service providers improve
service delivery to their customers. Since Botswana Life
introduced the Life-rewards cards to its clients in mid-2013, other
service providers have also developed innovative products. Some
micro lenders now provide a platform for online loan applications.

NBFIRA

Botswana Insurance Company (BIC) has partnered with Orange
Mobile Network that enables the insurers to use Orange Money
facility to pay premiums through cellphones.
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INSURANCE

INSURANCE DEPARTMENT

The Insurance Department is responsible for the regulation
and supervision of reinsurers, insurers, medical aid funds and
insurance intermediaries (insurance brokers and insurance agents)
in accordance with the provisions of the NBFIRA Act and the
Insurance Industry Act together with its supporting regulations.

Licensing Status

During the year under review, two insurers, namely, Metropolitan
Life of Botswana Limited and Momentum Life Botswana (Pty) Ltd
finalized their merger which was approved in 2011 and a new
insurer; Old Mutual Life Insurance Company (Botswana) (Pty) Ltd
was granted a license bringing the number of life insurers to nine
(9) as at the end of the financial year.

Insurance brokers increased from forty-six (46) in the previous
year to forty-seven (47) as at the end of the year. Six (6) insurance

brokers' licenses were issued while three (3) insurance brokers
voluntarily withdrew their licenses. The Regulatory Authority
cancelled two (2) licenses for insurance brokers due to failure to
meet capital requirements. One of these insurance brokers was

also involved in mismanagement of policyholders’ funds.

The insurance sector has for some years been characterized
by fluctuating numbers of licensed insurance corporate agents.
The number of insurance corporate agents decreased from two
hundred and five (205) in 2015 to one hundred and ninety four
(194) as at end of March 2016.This is despite having licensed a
total of twenty-three (23) insurance corporate agents during the
year. The decrease in number of licensed insurance corporate
agents was due to regulatory cancellations, voluntary withdrawals,
and termination of agency agreements by principals (insurance
brokers and insurers).

Table 14: Number of Licensed Entities during the Year ended March 31

Type of NBFI New

licenses
Reinsurers 3 0
Life Insurers ** 9 |
General Insurers 12 0
Medical Aids Funds 0
Sub Total 33 |
Insurance Brokers 46 6
Insurance Corporate Agents 205 23
Sub Total 251 29
Grand Total 284 30

Withdrawals/ %Change
Dissolutions

0 3 0

| 9 0

0 12 0

0 9 0

| 33 0

5 47 22

34 194 54

39 24| -4.0

40 274 -35

Note: ** The withdrawal represents the merger between Metropolitan Life and Momentum Life.

Figure 10 : Structure of the Insurance Industry in 2015/16
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INSURANCE (cont)

Compliance Activities

During the period under review, a total of eighteen (18) onsite
inspections were conducted being five (5) routine inspections,
four (4) special onsite inspections and nine (9) thematic

inspections as shown by Table 15 below.

The number of onsite inspections decreased by ten (10)
inspections in comparison to the previous year figure of twenty-
eight (28) inspections due to significant reduction in thematic
onsite inspections. The onsite inspections are conducted as part
of the continuous risk based supervision regime in which all
licensed insurance entities are subject to routine onsite inspections
depending on the findings of the offsite monitoring.

The onsite inspections are general checks on the entity's internal
controls systems, corporate governance as well as compliance with
the relevant rules and regulations, including adherence to Anti-
money laundering and Counter terrorism financing requirements.

The Regulatory Authority continues to encounter a series of non-
compliance by some of the licensed insurance entities which led
to investigations, corrective orders, and notices of cancellations,
cancellations and issuance of directives. The latter regulatory
interventions were in response to areas of failure among others
of late filing of statutory returns, late renewal of licenses, unfair
repudiation of insurance claims, and engagement of unqualified
and unregistered representatives.

Table 15: Summary of Compliance Activities during the Year ended March 31.

Activity 2015 2016 % Change
Routine onsite inspections 5 5 0
Special onsite inspections 2 4 100
Thematic onsite inspections 2| 9 (57)
Total No of onsite inspections 28 18 (36)
Prudential visits (bilateral meeting) 0 0 0
Investigations I 0 (100)
Corrective orders 3 3 0
Notices of cancellation 4 9 125
Cancellations 10 I3 30
Directives 2 5 150
Suspensions 0 0 0
Total 48 48 0

Thirteen (13) cancellations of licenses of insurance intermediaries
were done during the year as a result of various reasons illustrated
in the Table 16 below. Two (2) of these intermediaries are
insurance brokers who failed to maintain the minimum statutory
capital required of P30,000.The majority of cancellation of licenses

for intermediaries are a result of voluntary withdrawals, regulatory
cancellations and termination of agency agreements by principals.

Table 16: Cancellations of Insurance Intermediary Licenses during the
Year ended March 31,2016

Reason for Cancellation of License Number
of Cases
Failure to meet minimum statutory capital (Contrary |
to Section 54 Insurance Industry Act read with
Regulation 16 of Insurance Industry Regulations)
Failure to meet minimum statutory capital and
mismanagement of policyholders funds (Contrary to
Section 54 & 57 of Insurance Industry Act read with
Regulation 18 of the Insurance Industry Regulations)
Termination of agency agreement (regulatory 8
cancellation) (In terms of Section 47 of the NBFIRA
Act)
Termination of agency agreement (voluntary 3
withdrawal) (In terms of Section 46 of the NBFIRA
Act)
TOTAL 13

Financial Performance of the Insurance Sector

The insurance sector experienced an unprecedented growth
rates in terms of gross written premium from P3.96 billion in the
previous year to P4.63 billion in the current year being an increase
of 17%. The sector however experienced a |% decline in the total
asset base from P21.50 billion in the previous year to close at
P21.25 billion in the current year.

Underthe risk based supervision model, some of the key indicators
to assess the financial health of an insurer are the capital adequacy
and insurance risk ratios. The insurance risk ratio is determined as
net written premium over capital held by an insurer. This simply
indicates the amount of insurance business that the insurer can
underwrite or absorb with a certain level of capital. In addition,
the capital adequacy indicator or the prescribed capital target
purpose is to quantify the minimum level of admissible assets in
excess of liabilities that will provide a sufficient cushion against
random negative fluctuations or adverse experience. Notably any
variation from this requirement acts as early warning system for
the Regulatory Authority. In simple terms, adequate capital provides
a buffer against losses that have not been anticipated. Notably,
during the reporting period, the insurance sector remained
solvent and fairly profitable as indicated by the above mentioned
financial ratios.

The life insurance sector total assets exceeded the total liabilities
by P2.8 billion, while the general insurance sector solvency margin
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exceeded the 125% threshold which is considered satisfactory
under the risk based supervision model. The individual general
insurers falling below the 125% solvency threshold are given
immediate and close monitoring by the Regulatory Authority. The
latter regulatory intervention is also applicable to individual life
insurers whose assets fail to exceed their liabilities.

The life insurance sector has increasingly continued to dominate
the insurance sector in terms of total market share both in gross
written premium and total assets. This is evident by noting that
72% and 92% of total gross written premium and total assets
respectively and as represented in Table 17 below:

Table 17:Selected Key ltems of Financial Information of Life and General
Insurers during the year ended December 31 in Pula Million

Description Life General 2015 2014
Insurance Insurance Totals Totals

Gross Written 3,336 [,295 4,631 3,960

Premiums

Total Assets 19,467 1,783 21,250 21,497

Total Liabilities 16,666 994 17,660 18,032

Figure | | below shows the growth trend of gross written premium
for the past five (5) years in the insurance sector which shows a
continuous growth in both the life and non-life insurance sectors
for the period, with more significant growth observed in the life
insurance sector.

Figure | 1: Gross Written Premium for Life and General Insurers over 5
Year period

Gross Written Premium 5 Year Trend

YR 2011 YR 2012 YR 2013 YR 2014

YR 2015

B Gross Premium Written over a period of 5 years (P million) Non-Life Insurance
B Gross Premium Written over a period of 5 years (P million) Life Insurance

Life Insurance
The gross written premium of the life insurance sector
experienced a significant growth of 21% during the year under

NBFIRA

review to close the year at P3.34 billion from P2.76 billion in 2014.
The current year’s growth is significant when compared to an 8%
growth recorded in the previous reporting period. The growth in
gross written premium is as a result of written premium per class
of business which indicated that the bulk of premium written is
mainly from life insurance products and annuities which carries
about 72% of total life insurance premiums as shown by Figure
12 below.

Figure 12: Gross Written Premium by Class of Business — Life Insurers
2015

Gross Written Premium by class of business
for life insurers
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Total asset base of life insurers decreased by P191.4 million as a
result of the merger between Metropolitan Life Botswana Limited
and Momentum Life Botswana (Pty) Limited in 2015. Total
liabilities decreased by 2% from P16.9 billion in the previous year
to P16.7 billion in the current year. The life insurance sector is
slowly becoming more competitive, as evidenced by licensing of
another life insurer during the review period. However, there is
still evidence of concentration with one insurer accounting for 57%
of total life insurance assets and 74% of gross written premium.

The financial profile of the individual life insurers is presented in
the form of the consolidated financials shown in Appendix | of
this report.

General Insurance

During the reporting period, a total of P1.29 billion was generated
as gross written premium from the general insurance sector being
an 8% growth from the P1.20 billion recorded in the previous
year. The growth in premiums is attributable to a significant



INSURANCE (cont)

increase in transportation and accident classes of business and
the performance of a new insurer that had not completed its
twelve (12) month reporting cycle in the previous period and was
therefore not considered for consolidation in that period. The
market share of gross written premiums by individual classes of
business is presented in Figure |3 below:

Figure 13: Market Share of Gross Written Premium by Class of Business
— General Insurers 2015

Gross Written Premium by class of business
for General insurers for 2015

= Property Transportation ™ Motor B Accident ® Health

B Guarantee ™ Liability Engineering ™ Miscellaneous

The general insurance sector recorded a slight increase of 4%
in total assets and a decrease by 2% in total liabilities from the
previous year. The sector remains highly competitive with the
market leader holding 21% and 28% of the market share in terms
of both gross written premium and assets held, respectively. This is
the same as the previous year's figures.

The financial profile of the individual general insurers is presented
in the form of the consolidated financials shown in Appendix 2 of
this report.

Reinsurance

As at March 31, 2016 there were three (3) licensed reinsurers
transacting general reinsurance business. The three (3) reinsurers
generated a total gross premium income of P146.38 million which
is a significant increase of 43.03% from the prior year's figure
of P102.34 million. The total gross written premium of P146.38
million recorded during the year is composed of P77.96 million
generated from the domestic market whilst P68.42 million was
generated from the external market.

Premiums ceded by the general insurers from the domestic market
amounted to P501.7million which is still significantly higher than
the total premium written by the local reinsurers from the same
market. This implies that a lot of insurance premium underwritten
from the domestic market is still placed in the external market.

During the reporting period, the total asset base of general
reinsurers increased significantly by 21% from P193 million in
2014 to P234 million in 2015 while, the total liabilities increased by
29% from P96 million in the previous year to P124 million in the
reporting period. The increase in total assets base of reinsurers
demonstrates the increasing underwriting capacity of the local
reinsurance market, although this sector is still considered to be in
a developmental phase.

It is also notable that this sector has continued on a phenomenal
growth trajectory (year-on-year) as illustrated in Table 18 below.

Table 18: Market Performance of Reinsurers over a period of 5 years

Market Performance of Reinsurers over a period of 5 years

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
(P'000) (P'000) (P'000) (P'000) (P'O00)
Gross Written 8,000 20,000 35864 102,340 146,384
Premium
Premium 1,563 13532 10,572 26555 44,110
Retroceded
Net Written 16,356 20,821 25292 75,785 102,274
Premium
Incurred Claims 5132 6,222 6,957 27,587 32,760
Total Assets 40,234 44,123 49,664 192,795 233972
Total Liabilities 20,053 24,111 24576 96,212 123923

The financial profile of the individual reinsurers is presented in
the form of consolidated financials shown in Appendix 3 of this
report.

Insurance Intermediaries

There are three (3) types of insurance intermediaries whose
responsibilities are to market and sell insurance products and
services being insurance brokers, insurance corporate agents and
representatives (natural persons). The Insurance intermediaries
continue to serve as the critical link between insurers seeking
to underwrite insurance policies and consumers seeking to
procure insurance coverage. Insurance intermediaries offer advice,
information and other services in connection with the solicitation,
negotiation and sale of insurance. During the reporting period,
the insurance sector consisted of 241 licensed intermediaries with
over 2000 registered representatives.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT
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The gross written premiums generated through insurance brokers
amounted to P883.4 million and an amount of P222 million was
earned as insurance commission with additional revenue of P100.5
million earned from other insurance related intermediary services.

The figures reported in this report were obtained from only thirty
eight (38) insurance brokers who had submitted their financials at
the time of publication. As a result, the total assets of insurance
brokers show a decline from P374 million reported in 2014 to
P339 million during the reporting period.

Market Impact Assessment

The insurance sector continued to contribute significantly to the
economy as it generates gross written premium of P4.6 billion (an
increase of P67 1 million from the previous year) thus constituting
around 3.2% of the Gross Domestic Product at current market
prices. The insurance penetration rate in the economy has been
stagnant over the past 3 vyears at around 3%. In addition, the
insurance sector (reinsurers and insurers) held combined assets
in excess of P21.5 billion.

Insurance as a risk transfer mechanism plays a major role as an
economic development vehicle as well as contributing to savings
and job creation. The sector also plays a major role in stimulating
the economy as millions of Pula are distributed through policy
benefits and claims paid each year from this sector.

Capital Requirements

Insurance entities are required to maintain the minimum capital as
required by the Act. The statutory minimum capital requirements
should be maintained at all times for insurance brokers and re-
insurers. In addition to the minimum capital requirement, insurers
and reinsurers are required to hold Prescribed Capital Target at all
times to required levels. Under the current Insurance Industry Act,
insurance agents are not required to maintain minimum statutory
capital.

Risk Profiling of Insurance Entities

As part of the continuous risk based supervision regime, all
licensed insurance entities are subject to ongoing risk profiling.
The risk profiling of an insurance entity is determined based on
the offsite and onsite monitoring of any uncertainty in relation
to the business operations, whether quantifiable or not, that can
adversely affect the financial position of an insurance entity.

Table 19 below shows the risk ratings and supervisory attention
from the risk profiles conducted during the reporting period
for insurers and reinsurers. Overall, there has been a general
improvement in the rating of the industry from the prior period.

NBFIRA

Table 19: Risk Rating Outcomes for General Re/Insurers

Number of Entities
(insurers & reinsurers)

2014/2015 2015/2016

Risk Rating and

% Change
Supervisory Attention

Normal 8 10 25
Watch List 8 7 (12.5)
Remedial Action I 2 100
Onsite Supervision 4 3 (25)
Not Rated 3 3 0
Total 24 25 4

Medical Aid Funds
The number of registered Medical Aids Funds remained unchanged
at nine (9) with a total membership base of 346,399 lives covered.

Table 20: Shows a Summary of MAFs principal members and
dependants as at March 31,2016

Number of Principal Members Dependents Total
Medical Aid Funds
9 150,278 196,121 346,399

The total number of lives covered is lower than that reported in
the previous year due to a severe under-reporting of information
by one of the medical aid funds.

The development of Medical Aid Funds Draft Regulations with
consultation of relevant stakeholders was completed during the
reporting period.

Market Conduct/Consumer Protection

The Regulatory Authority continues to receive and resolve
complaints from consumers of both insurance and medical aid
with a total of 66 complaints received during the year

The general insurance sector accounted for 50% of the complaints
while the life insurance sector accounted for 42% and the rest
of complaints were from medical aids funds. The majority of
insurance complaints received were as a result of repudiation of
claims which accounted for 32% of the total number of complaints
received during the year. Other significant complaints emanated
from cancellation of policies at | 8% which are often characterized
by requests for refunds of premium already paid by the clients
resulting from delays by insurers in the effecting such cancellations.

Some of the complaints received continue to demonstrate limited
understanding of the product offering in the sector. To this end,
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partnership of the Regulatory Authority and the insurance sector is vital
in terms of enhancing education on financial products and services. A
thorough utilization of such fora will reduce the number of complaints
received and will enhance confidence in the insurance sector. Table
21| below shows that the number and nature of complaints received
during the reporting period.

Table 21: Number and Nature of Complaints Received During the Year

Complaints Handled During The Reporting Period

Nature of Life General Medical Total % Total
Complaint insurance insurance Aid Funds Number Complaints
Repudiation 5 [ 5 21 31.8

of claim

Cancellation of 8 4 0 12 18.2

policy/request for
Premium refunds

Payment below 3 3 0 6 9.1
expectations

Poor Service 6 2 0 8 [2.1
delivery

Malpractice 2 4 0 6 9.1
Misappropriation 0 3 4.5

of premiums by

insurance brokers

Others 4 6 0 10 152
Total 28 33 5 66 100

Regulatory Challenges

Despite a generally satisfactory level of compliance with applicable
financial services law, within the insurance sector there are still a few
instances of non-compliance issues as below:

|. Non- compliance by some insurance entities in relation to filing of
statutory returns, audited financial statements, annual and quarterly
returns within stipulated timeframes.
This continues to impact negatively on the Regulatory Authority’s
ongoing offsite monitoring function and timely production of
statistical information for both internal and external users.
Late renewal of insurance licenses.

3. Limited utilization of the implemented the Risk Based Supervision
System (RBSS) portal.

4. Limited knowledge and understanding of the requirements of the
NBFIRA Act, Insurance Industry Act and its Regulations.

5. The use of unqualified representatives to transact insurance
business continues to contribute to poor service delivery to both

existing and potential policyholders.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT
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RETIREMENT FUNDS

RETIREMENT FUNDS AND INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS
DEPARTMENT

The RFIl Department has a dual role of the regulation of pensions
and provident funds as well as related businesses. The department
also regulates investment institutions and related businesses.

Licensing Status

In the period ended March 2016 there were eighty seven (87)
active licensed retirement Funds compared to ninety-one (91) in
the previous year. The decrease was as a result of the transfer

of four (4) Standalone Funds to existing Umbrella Funds. The
Retirement Funds figure include five (5) Umbrella Funds which
collectively had registered two hundred and forty eight (248) sub-
funds. There were no dissolutions or issuance of new licenses
during the period under review.

Two companies continued to offer fund administration services
under a waiver pending promulgation of relevant regulations.

Table 22: Licensing Status of the Retirement Funds Sector as at March 31.

New Dissolution/ Transfers % Change
Licenses Voluntary To Umbrella
Withdrawals Funds
Stand Alone Funds 86 0 0 4 82 (47)
Umbrella Funds 5 0 0 0 5 0
Sub-total of Retirement Funds 91 0 0 4 87 (4.4)
Fund Administrators 2 n/a n/a n/a 2 0
Grand Total 93 0 0 4 89 (4.3)
Sub Funds of Umbrella Funds 225 23 0 0 248 10

Figure 14: Structure of the Pensions Industry in 2015/16

Pensions
Industry
(89)

Related
Business

(2)

Retirement
Funds
(87)

Providents Funds
(4)
(Disebursement
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Stand Alone
Funds (3)

Pension Funds (83)
(Disebursement:
1/3 cash payment &
2/3 annuity investment)

Umbrella
Funds (4)

Stand Alone
Funds (79)

Note: * other related businesses are regulated as Fund Administrators.
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Administrators

@
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RETIREMENT FUNDS

Market Conduct and Consumer Protection Issues

Twenty-five (25) complaints were received by the Regulatory
Authority being a significant reduction of 40% compared to the
forty-two (42) complaints received in the previous year The
reduction in complaints received were attributable to lower
complaints regarding the encashment of deferred pension benefits,
which constituted the majority of complaints in the previous year

Most of the complaints during the period under review were
attributed to the recalculation of pension benefits.

Nineteen (19) complaints were resolved while the Regulatory
Authority was awaiting response from regulated entities on the
remaining six (6) complaints. The complaints received are detailed
in Table 23 below:

Table 23: Retirement Funds Industry Complaints

Number of Complaints Number of Complaints

Received in the year
ended March 31,2016

Type of Complaints

received in the year
ended March 31,2015

Recalculation of Pension Benefits 8 9
Encashment 2/3 of deferred benefit 22 4
Transfer of benefits to another Fund 5 5
Queries related to Liquidations 2 0
Unlawful withholding of Pension Benefits 3 |
Tax related matters | 0
Other (pension benefit dispute) | 6
Total Complaints 42 25

Market Structure and Developments

The Retirement Funds Industry contributes significantly to the
economy of Botswana. Retirement Funds assets as a percentage
of GDP at market prices increased to 51 % at the end of the

Table 24: Retirement Funds Investments as at December 3|

Investment Assets 2014 2015 % Change

(Pula Billion) (Pula Billion)

review period, compared with 41% in 2014. The retirement funds Botswana Equities 11403 13,216 6
as at December 2015 amounted to P 74 billion being an increase Seifsuane Uil sitad lbguies SRED D) E
of 25.4% from the previous year figure of P 59 billion due to Offshore Equities 27322 38,285 40
increases in investment returns and income from contributions. Sub-Total 155 a2 32
Pula Bonds* 7,847 8,947 14
Offshore Bonds 6015 7,853 31
During the year ended December 31, 2015, total contributions Sub-Total 13,862 16,800 21
increased by 0% from P3, 134 million in 2014 to P3,449 million in Exchange Traded Funds 403 363 10
2015, with income on investments increasing by 26% from P6, 345 Pula Cash/Near Cash 2,639 3296 25
million in the previous year. Benefit payments made to members Offshore Cash/Near Cash 2012 118 94
and beneficiaries increased by 3% from P3, 204 million in the prior Botswana Property 322 337 5
year to P3, 305 million in 2015. General expenses incurred and Sub-Total 5,376 4,114 23
Total Investments 59,393 73,845 24

other fees, saw a decrease of 2% from P 718 million in 2014 to P
701 million in 2015.

Retirement Funds Investments

Table 24 below shows the allocation of retirement fund
investments by asset class and geographical location. Total equities
accounted for 72%, bonds accounted for 23% and Cash and near
cash, property and exchange traded funds accounted for the
remaining 5%.

NBFIRA

Note: *Includes Commercial paper

Retirement Funds in Botswana are allowed to invest up to a
maximum of 70% of their assets offshore. As at December 31,
2015 offshore investments of retirement funds was P 46.2 billion
or 62% of total retirement fund assets while local assets accounted
for P 27.6 billion or 38%. This represents a gradual increase in



RETIREMENT FUNDS (cont.)

offshore investment of retirement fund assets from 60% recorded

in the previous financial year.

Table 25 below shows the retirement funds asset allocations by
region

Table 25: Onshore/Offshore Investment of Pension Assets as at December 31.

Year 2014 Year 2015

Pula Percentage  Pula Percentage
LOCAL 24,044 40 27,589 37
INVESTMENTS
OFFSHORE 35,349 60 46,256 63
INVESTMENTS
TOTAL 59,393 100 73,845 100

Membership of Retirement Funds

Total membership of retirement funds was 237 482 as at
December 31, 2015, being an increase of 1% compared to the
previous year figure of 234 999. The membership comprised
of 206 212 active members, |9 969 deferred members and | |
301 pensioners. The largest fund is the Botswana Public Officers
Pension Fund (“BPOPF"), with a membership of 153 326 or 65%
of total membership and total assets of P 52 billion or 7 1% of total
retirement funds assets.

Table 26: Membership Statistics as at December 31

Membership Status 2014 2015 % Change
Active 206,709 206,212 (0.2)
Deferred 17,432 19,969 14.6
Pensioners 10,858 [1,301 4.1
Total 234,999 237,482 1.1

Regulatory Challenges

Despite increased understanding of the importance of good
governance by retirement funds, the following Regulatory
challenges continue to be experienced in the retirement industry:

* Llack of knowledge of the new regulatory requirements,

specifically, the Prudential Rules, which require the Retirement
Code of
Conducts, Risk Management Policies and Investment Policies.

Funds to formulate Communication Policies,

Most Retirement Funds, particularly the relatively smaller
ones, are experiencing challenges in complying with the same.
The Regulatory Authority has issued out reminders to non-

compliant funds.

* Low usage of Risk Based Supervision System (“RBSS”). The

Retirement Funds Industry is encouraged to embrace the
new [T system, so as to promote operational efficiency in the
submission of information to NBFIRA.

+ Slow reaction to new regulatory requirements, specifically
PFR 2, which was issued to the industry in October 5, 2015
for implementation on May 2016. The Regulatory Authority
has been receiving requests for extension to comply with the
requirements of PFR 2. The Regulatory Authority will engage
further with the industry to address the concerns of the
industry on PFR2.

*  NBFIRA is concerned with the high costs that are incurred by
some Retirement Funds, particularly, management expenses
as these expenses contribute to the erosion of member
retirement savings. Trustees are encouraged to come up with
cost containment measures to maintain expenses within

acceptable levels.

* Inadequate investment instruments which result in an illiquid
domestic capital market which is unable to absorb retirement
fund savings. This has led to an Industry which is more skewed
towards offshore investments as opposed to local investments.
The asset management industry in particular; is encouraged to
be more innovative in finding and exploiting local investment

opportunities.

+ Late submission of annual returns. Altthough there have been
some improvements in submission of the annual returns, some
Retirement Funds still request for extensions to submit the

same.

« Customer and Member Education - A major challenge
for the retirement industry in Botswana is to ensure that
members of Retirement Funds are aware of their rights and
obligations regarding their entitlements in terms of the fund
rules. The Regulatory Authority is encouraging pension funds
to formulate communication policies which include member
rights and obligations and has issued out a prudential rule in

this regard.

Regulatory Reforms

The Retirement Funds Act, which replaces the Pensions and
Provident Funds Act was promulgated in August 2014 and awaits a
commencement order.The Act covers, in detalil, issues of corporate
governance, supervision of service providers. It also provides for
the issuance of investment guidelines and approval.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT



RETIREMENT FUNDS (cont,)

The Retirement Funds Regulations which support the Retirement
Funds Act have been drafted, and are expected to be gazetted in
due course. The Regulations outline the licensing requirements
for Fund Administrators who are classified as regulated entities in
terms of the NBFIRA Act, but have not yet been licensed, in the
absence of the Regulatory Framework.

The Retirement Funds Unit issued to the industry in October 5,
2015 a circular pertaining to the revised PFR 2. The revised PFR2
provides the retirement fund industry with the revised quantitative
limits on assets to be held by a retirement fund. It further requires
that the Industry formulate an Investment Policy, establish a risk
committee and appoint a risk officer who should be a member of
the risk committee.The effective date was November |,2015 with
a transition period of six (6) months, following which Retirement
Funds were expected to comply with PFR 2 effective May 1,2016

GRAPHICAL OVERVIEW OF THE RETIREMENT FUNDS
INDUSTRY IN 2015/16.

Figure I15: Membership Retirement Funds as at 31 December 2015

Membership Statistrics
as at December 31,2015

Membership Statistrics
as at December 31,2014

8%

@@

87%

W Active M Deffered B Pensioners B Active B Deffered B Pensioners

NBFIRA

Table 25: Retirement Funds Investment Assets (Pula Billions)

Investment Assets 2015 (Pula Billion) Percentage
Botswana Equities 13216 18
Exchange Traded Funds 363 049
Pula Bonds 8,947 12
Pula Cash/Near Cash 3,296 4
Botswana Property 337 0.46
Botswana Unlisted Equities 1,429 1.94
Offshore Equities 38,285 52
Offshore Bonds 7,853 Il
Offshore Cash/Near Cash 18 0.16
Total Investments 73,845 100
Figure 16: Retirement Fund Assets as at December 3|
Offshore Cash/
Near Cash Botswana Equities
0% 18%
Offshore Bonds Exchange Traded

['1% \ 19

Pula Bonds
/ \2%
Offshore Equities  Botswana Unlisted ~ Botswana Pula Cash/
52% Equities Property Near Cash
2% 0% 4%

Figure 17: Asset Split Comparison 2014-2015
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RETIREMENT FUNDS (cont.)

Figure 18: Retirement Funds Asset Local /Offshore Split 2010 to 2015
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Table 28: Retirement Funds Income/Expenditure Statements for the Period Ended December 31

Income Year 2015 Year 2014 % Change
(Pula Millions) (Pula Millions)

Members Contributions 909 999 ©)
Employer Contributions 2,540 2,134 19
Amounts received on life insurances 9 8 I3
Investment Income 8,018 6,345 26
Other Income 1,063 999 6
Total 12,539 10,486 20
Expenditure

Benefit Payments 3,305 3,204 3
Administration, Management Expenses and other Fees 701 718 )
Insurance Premiums I5 Il 33
Total 4,421 3,933 2

Source: NBFIRA

Figure 19: Retirement Funds Income
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RETIREMENT FUNDS (cont)

Figure 20: Retirement Funds Expenses
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Figure 21: Retirement Funds Total Contribution/Management Expenses

NBFIRA
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INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS

INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS

Licensing Status of Regulated NBFls

Collective ("ClIUS")  being the
Management Companies and/or Investment Companies with
Variable Capital and the CIU funds require licenses to operate.
The aforesaid are licensed in accordance with the provisions of
the Collective Investments Undertakings Act, 1999. Trustees

Investment  Undertakings

and Custodians for CIU's require prior approval under the same
Act. Whilst efforts are still underway to ensure that the Market
Intermediaries Licensing Regulations are promulgated, a prudent
approach has been adopted which subjects all entities to a due
diligence assessment and are issued with a letter of exemption to
operate.

The due diligence exercises are carried out using the Market
Intermediaries Licensing Rules which lay down a legal framework
based on international standards.

Licensed/exempted entities increased by 1% from 120 in 2014
to 122 in 2015. The increase is attributed to the entry of two
(2) new entrants in the private equity and investment advisory
markets. The number of asset managers decreased to eleven (11)
due to a misclassification of exemption type. The misclassification
led to an increase in the private equity firms to three (3) in 2015.
The entity that was classified as an Investment Company was
re-categorized to an Investment Company with Variable Capital.
However, the entity has not been recorded as the license was
issued after March 31,2016.

Figure 22: Structure of the Investment Institutions Sector in 2015/16
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Table 29: Number of Licensed/exempted Entities during the Year-ended December 3|

Type of Investment Institution Year New License Withdrawals Year Percentage
2014 /exemption /Dissolutions 2015 Change(%)
Asset Managers 12 0 | I'l -8.3
Private Equity | 2 0 3 200
Sub Total Non-CIU 13 2 | 14 7.7
Management Companies for 0 0 4 0
ClUs*
Investment Company with | 0 0 | 0
Variable Capital
Sub-Total CIU 5 0 0 5
CIU Funds** |7 0 0 |7 0
Externally Licensed Funds*** 75 0 0 75 0
Trustees for ClUs 2 0 0 2 0
Custodians 3 0 0 3 0
Investment Advisers 5 | 0 6 20
Investment Companies**#* I 0 0 0 0
Sub —Total Other 102 | 0 103 |
Grand Total 120 3 | 122 2

NBFIRA



INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS (cont)

Note:

* Management Companies and Investment Companies
with Variable Capital are licensed separately.

ok Each CIU Fund within the Management Company is
licensed separately.

*k These are Funds licensed outside Botswana but they
have been granted with approvals to be marketed in
Botswana.

Rk Re-categorization of the Investment Company was done,
it now falls under a different license category but is
not reported here as the license was issued after the
reporting period.

Compliance Activities

Consultative/prudential meetings

Four (4) bilateral meetings were held during the year ended March
31, 2016 while ten (10) inspections were carried out. These
inspections included seven (7) routine, one () pre-operational
and one (1) special cause inspection. One (1) familiarization visit
was carried out on a Private Equity firm to further understand the
nature of this business.

The scope of the routine inspections was to assess the conduct
of all business aspects in accordance with operations of an
Asset Manager; compliance to the NBFIRA (Securities Business
Corporate Governance) Rules, 2012 and the NBFIRA (Market
Intermediaries Conduct of Business) Rules, 2012 and to evaluate,
inter alia, internal controls, investment processes, treatment of
clients/investors and Anti-Money Laundering procedures.

The common findings during these inspections were:

i. The market intermediaries were found to hold board
meetings bi-annually as opposed to quarterly as required
by the NBFIRA (Securities Business Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2012;

ii. Policy reviews were only done as and when there are
changes in legislation and not annually as required by the
Rules;

iii. Most of the investment institutions inspected did not
have an internal audit function nor had they appointed
external internal auditors; and

iv. Local AML laws not being incorporated in entity AML/
CFT policies.

Table 30: Summary of Compliance Activities during the Year — December 31

Activity Number in 2014  Number in 2015

Inspections by type:

Routine 0 7
Pre-operation 4 |

Thematic and follow up | 0
Familiarization 2 |

Special Cause 0 |

Sub -Total 7 10
Investigations 0 2
Corrective Orders (Penalties) 2 2
Notices of cancellation | 0
Cancellations 2 0
Directives 0 2
Suspensions 0 0
Total 5 16

During the year under review the following areas of non-
compliance were discovered through off-site monitoring:

+ Late submission of quarterly returns;
* Late submission of audited annual financial statements; and
*  Non submission of audited annual financial statements.

The Regulatory Authority is taking enforcement action against
non-compliant entities in terms of the NBFIRA Act and the various
Financial Services Laws.

Following the migration to the Risk Based Supervisory System in
August 2015, the unit has received a positive response from the
regulated entities in terms of usage and adoption of the system.

Assets under Management (AUM) of Investment Institutions
Figure 23 below shows the industry assets by classification for
2014 and 2015. Management Companies and Asset Managers
held total Assets under Management (“*AUM") of P50 billion as
at December 31, 2015, being a significant decrease of 19% from
P62 billion as at December 31 2014. This decrease in total assets
was as a result of termination of contracts of local asset managers
by BPOPF, and the assets were in turn directly invested offshore
by BPOPF.

ClU assets recorded a 70% increase from the previous year’s
figure of P3.74 billion to P6.37 billion in the current year due to
an increase in the number of individuals and institutions opting to
invest collectively.
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INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS (cont)

Figure 23: AUM of Investment Institutions by Type for the Year Ending
December 3 st

Industry Assets as at December 31st
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Figure 24: Market Share of CIU & Non-ClU Assets over the Past 5 Years
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held by Asset Managers

2015 EX e
2014 I ————————— 9,
2003 I ——— 5%
2012 W3 89

12%
2011 88%

Figure 25 below depicts the percentage market share each
Management Company held as at December 31,2015

Stanlib Investment Management Services (Pty) Limited (“SIMS")
continued its trend of recording the highest level of CIU assets in
2015 as it was the case in the past five years.The newest entrant in
the CIU market, Ipro Ponelopele (Pty) Ltd, which is an Investment
Company with Variable Capital (“ICVC") recorded the lowest CIU
holding as the entity commenced operations in April 2015.

NBFIRA

Figure 25: CIU Market Share as at December 31,2015

CIU Market Share

(a

Table 31: Total AUM of Investment Institutions December 31

African Alliance
Botswana MANCO

B BIFM Unit Trusts

Investec Fund Managers
Botswana (Pty)Ltd

B Stanlib Investment
Management Services
(Pty)Ltd CIU

December 31,2015 December 31,2014

% BWP %  BWP

(millions) (millions)
Retail* 24 I, 193 Retail |.5 727
Institutional 7.3 3,576 Institutional 5.7 3,504
Insurance Insurance
Institutional 78.1 38,464 Institutional 87.8 52,632
Pension ** Pension™*
Institutional 122 6,001 Institutional 5.0 3,083
Other ** Other **
Total 100.0 50,007 Total 1000 61,511

Note:

*  The private investors holding was added to the retail
holding as they were categorised to be the same in 2015.
** These figures have been revised from those stated in the
2015 annual report due to the reclassification of
AUM holdings.

In 2015, the Institutional investors were the highest contributors
with a holding of 98.46% of the total AUM which was an
insignificant decrease from the 98.58 % recorded in 2014. In the
2015 Annual report the pension fund contribution was stated
as 63%, however, after an adjustment in the classification of the
holdings the contribution has been changed to 88%. The pension
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funds contributed 78% in 2015 as compared to 88% in 2014. This
was a decline of 10% which is significant due to the termination of
local asset managers’ contracts by BPOPF.

Figure 26: Distribution of AUM Investment Institutions by Client type as
at December 31

2015
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Institutional Institutional
Other Pension
12% 78%
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Institutional
Insurance
6%
Institutional Institutional
Other Pension
5% 87%

With reference to Figure 27 below, there was a turn in market
share holding on Non-ClU assets in 2015, as BIFM Limited ended
the year holding the highest market share at 23%, relegating into
second position Investec with a market share of 18%. Fleming
held the third highest market share of 17% in 2015. The two (2)
highest market share holders together held a total market share
of 41% of the Non-CIU assets in 2015, being a decline of 12%
from the shareholding of 53% recorded in 2014 and. this is an
encouraging turn in the market as it shows that the sector is now
becoming more competitive.

Figure 27: Asset Managers Market Share of Non-CIU Market Share as at
December 31,2015

Non-CIU Market Share of the Asset Managers as at
December 31,2015

Stanlib Investment Other Asset African Alliance
Management Services Managers AM
(Pty)Ltd CIU 6% I'19%

10%

L

Investec Fund
Managers Botswana
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Source: NBFIRA

Investment Institutions (Mancos and Asset managers)

The total assets for Investment Institutions decreased to P 6 billion
in 2015, from P8 billion in the previous year representing a 25 %
annual decrease. Similarly, the liabilities of the sector also recorded
a 26 % decrease to P 6 billion during the 2015 financial year.
However, a Capital growth of 3% to P 317 million in the sector
was recorded.

Figure 28: Compressed Statement of Financial Position for Investment
Institutions
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Source: NBFIRA
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Figure 29: Compressed Statement of Comprehensive Income for
Investment Institutions

Total Revenwe | s
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Source: NBFIRA

The gross income for the sector was P | billion, which represented
a 31% decrease over the prior year. This decline was attributable
to the decrease in revenues from the reduced management fees
received by the managers, mainly due to the BPOPF terminated
mandates. A similar trend was observed in expenses which
registered an annual decline of 35 %. Net income before tax in

the sector was P |31 million which was a 6% decrease from P 140

million recorded in the previous year

NBFIRA
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CAPITAL MARKETS

CAPITAL MARKETS DEPARTMENT

The Capital Markets Department is responsible for regulation
and supervision of securities infrastructure businesses, securities
brokers/dealer institutions and global businesses which are
accredited to the IFSC.

Licensing Status of Regulated NBFls

The licensing status of the Capital Markets industry remained
unchanged during the year ending December 31 2015, as
shown in Table 32 below. The Botswana Stock Exchange (BSE)
and its subsidiary, the Central Securities Depository Company
of Botswana Limited (CSDB) are wholly owned by Botswana
Government. The CSDB operates under an exemption from
licensing requirements in accordance with Section 48 of the
NBFIRA Act pending the promulgation of the Persons Operating
a Securities Infrastructure Business (SIB) Regulations. The CSDB
facilitates the holding of securities in electronic format as opposed
to the traditional paper certificates. The usage of the CSDB was
increased following the 2014 directive to dematerialise all listed
companies securities.

The aim is to achieve 100% dematerialization, and to date only
65.3% of the domestic companies and 89.7% of the foreign
companies has been achieved. Full dematerialisation will help
reduce fraud associated with paper certificates as well as deter
unreported Over the Counter (OTC) transactions leading to
improved transparency and trade efficiency.

The Regulatory Authority received a considerable number of license
enquiries from clients pertaining to providing investment services
through established online trading platforms. This matter was
receiving regulatory attention at the time of reporting. In addition,
two (2") applications from International Financial Service Center
(IFSC) accredited companies wishing to de-register for various
reasons were received and are being processed.

Table 32: Number of Licensed Entities during the Year-ended December 3|

Type of NBFI 2014 2015
Securities Exchange | |
CSDB | |
Securities Brokers/Dealers 4 4
IFSC Accredited entities 7 7

Grand Total 13 13

Figure 30: Structure of the Capital Markets Industry in 2015/16
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Compliance Activities

Table 33: Summary of Compliance Activities during the Year — Ending
December 31

Activity Number in 2014  Number in 2015

Inspections by type:
Routine
Thematic

Investigations

Corrective Orders (penalty)
Notices of cancellation
Cancellations (deregistration)
Directives

Suspensions

Total
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CAPITAL MARKETS (cont)

Financial Performance of NBFIs (Based on audited financials for
year-ending Dec 2015)

Figure 31 below shows key items from the Statement of Comprehensive
Income for Securities Brokers for the year ending Dec 31.

0.21 while the ratio of operating expenses to revenue increased
to 0.79.

Figure 32 below shows key Items from the Statement of Comprehensive
Income for SIBs for the year ending Dec 3|

Figure 31: Compressed Statement of Comprehensive Income For
Securities Brokers

Total Comprehensive Income ‘
ol Expenses -

10 20 30

P Millions
m 2015 m2014

2014 2015

Total Comprehensive Income/Income 0.28 021
Total Expenses/Income 0.72 0.79

Source: NBFIRA

Figure 32: Compressed Statement of Comprehensive Income for SIBs

Total Comprehensive Income

Income

o

10 20 30 40 50

P Millions
m 2015 m2014

2014 2015

Total Comprehensive Income/Income 0.44 0.38
Total Expenses/Income 0.56 0.62

Source: NBFIRA

As shown above, increase in total revenues of Securities Brokers
was lower than increases in total expense, and the comprehensive
income was lower in 2015 compared to the prior year In turn,
the ratio of total comprehensive income to income declined to

Total revenues of SIBs were outpaced by increases in operating
expenses, resulting in a decrease of comprehensive income to
P16.3 million in 2015. As a result, the ratio of total comprehensive
income to income decreased to 0.38, while the ratio of total
expenses to income increased to 0.62.

Table 34: BSE Market Capitalisation as at December 31 (P Million)

Year 201 | 2012 2013 2014 2015
Domestic Market 30,694 35,531 43,458 46,210 50,214
Capitalisation)
Foreign Market 380910 376,818 373,133 371,947 370,885
Capitalisation
Total Market 411,604 412,349 416,590 418,157 421,099
Capitalisation
Source: BSE
Table 35: Performance of BSE Indices as at 3 |st December
Year 201 | 2012 2013 2014 2015
DCI 6,971 7510 9053 9,502 10,602
FCI 1,704 1,600 1,584 1,578 1,572
Source: BSE

2016 ANNUAL REPORT



CAPITAL MARKETS (cont)

The BSE's Domestic Companies Index (DCI) outperformed the
Foreign Company Index, by registering a |12% appreciation during
the year, compared to a slight decline of 0.33% recorded by the
latter. The DCI growth in 2015 was attributed to the positive
performance of the Financial Services Sector, Insurance Sector,
Retail and Wholesaling Sector, Property and Trust as well as
Tourism Sectors. (BSE Annual report 2015).

Market Impact Assessment

Figure 33: BSE Turnover as a percent of GDP as at 31st December

Turnover/GDP
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2,500
2,000 1.5%
| ,500 1.0%
1,000
0.5%
0 0.0%
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

mmm \alue Traded (PMn) === Turnover/GDP

As at 31 December, 2015 the equity turnover as a percentage of
GDP at market prices increased to 2.1% in 2015 which was the
highest recorded increase over the past 5 years.

Table 36: BSE Market Statistics as at December 31

Year 20011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Volume 459 410 711 592 803
Traded (Mn)

Value 1,008 895 2,315 2,177 3,032
Traded (P'Mn)

Turnover / GDP 09%  0.8% 1.9% 1.5% 2.1%
P/E Ratio (times) 102 9.2 1.5 132 12.3

Source: BSE

As at 31 December 2015, 803 million shares were traded on
the Botswana Stock Exchange (“BSE”) for a total turnover of P3
billion, whereas || million units of Exchange Traded Funds were
traded for turnover totalling P520 million.

NBFIRA

The volume of bonds traded was 789 million for a total turnover
of P858 million. The Price-Earnings Ratio for the period was 12.3.
According to Botswana Stock Exchange Annual Report 2015, the
increases in trading volumes are indicators that stability in the financial
markets has improved resulting in increased turnover. Unlike in the past
year where trading was concentrated on a few companies, the trend
was reversed in the current vear as trading was spread among many
companies resulting in significant increase in total turnover.

Capital Requirements

Securities broking firms are required to ensure that their assets exceed
their liabilities by no less than P150, 000 at all times. For the period
ended 31 December 2015, all four stockbroking firms were fully
compliant with this requirement.

Finance Resources Requirements (FRR) Regulations

In accordance with Section 50 of the NBFIRA Act, the Regulatory
Authority commenced the development of FRR regulations in order
to introduce variable capital requirements in line with individual risks
that each entity has taken on. The FRR has been submitted to the
Ministry of Finance and Development Planning for consideration and/
or approval.

Performance of Business Sector

Figure 34 below shows the structure of the statement of financial
position of securities brokers.Total assets of securities brokers,increased
by 132% to P137 million due to significant trade receivables and trade
payables recorded for one entity. The capital remained unchanged at
P22 million over the review period, and consequently, the capital to
total assets ratio for the sector contracted significantly. The debt-equity
ratio increased significantly to 5.16 in 2015, an indication of increased
financial leveraging by the market intermediaries in comparison with
the previous year. Although all market intermediaries met the minimum
capital requirement, this development is being closely monitored to
guard against violation of capital adequacy requirement.

Figure 34: Compressed Statement of Financial Position for Securities Brokers
and Table of Select Balance Sheet Items
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CAPITAL MARKETS (cont)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Assets  46,088262 39,983,743 54,429,522 59,412,607 137,444,577
Liabilities 38,628,359 31,453,894 40,339,382 37,675,100 [15,134,955

Equity 7,459,902 8529849 14,090,140 21,737,507 22,309,622
Debt- 52 37 29 1.7 52
Equity

Source: NBFIRA

The SIBs recorded a significant growth both total assets and equity,
which registered growth rates of 37% and 36%, respectively, during the
review period. As a result, the debt to equity ratio of the sector was
unchanged at 0.1.The low debt to equity ratio show that the industry
assets are financed more through equity than debt.

Figure 35: Compressed Statement of Financial Position for Securities Infrastructure
Business
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| Assets
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
201 | 2012 2013 2014 2015

Assets 17,995,449 38,639,674 42,052,883
Liabilities 3,246,562 14,460,308 5,702,259

55,786,318 76,765,253
4,290,637 6,862,780

Equity 14,748,887 24,179,366 36,350,624 51495744 69902473
Debt- 022 0.60 0.16 0.08 0.10
Equity

Source: 2015 Audited Financials

Risk Profiling and Rating Outcomes

Table 37: Risk Profiling and Rating outcomes

Risk Rating Number of Entities

2014 2015
Normal 3 3
Watchlist I |
Remedial Action 0 0
Not Rated* 2 2

Note: *SIBs have not been rated due to perceived low risk

Table 37 above shows the outcome of risk profiling of the
entities for the prior and current years. The rating of the
companies continue to change throughout the year as and
when new information arises which can either improve or
worsen the entities’ risk profiles. The concerns that brought
about lower ratings of the entities in 2014 included issues of
non-independence of the board of directors, undocumented
policies and late submissions of regulatory returns. The
entities were monitored closely to ensure improvements
in certain areas. In 2015 the ratings had improved although
some matters such as solvency and independence of the
Board were still to be addressed.

Market Conduct/Consumer Protection Issues

During the review period, the Regulatory Authority did not
receive any complaints about any of the Capital Markets
participants.

Regulatory Challenges, if any

Due to the evolving nature of the Capital Markets, the
department continues to receive various licensing enquiries
in areas that involve investments that are not defined as
activities of a non-bank financial institution in the NBFIRA Act,
for example forex online trading.

Late submission of returns by Global Business entities
continues to be a challenge although significant improvements
have been made.

Changes in Legislative Framework

The commencement date of the Securities Act, 2014 which
was approved by Parliament, is still pending. The Securities
Act, 2014 will repeal the Botswana Stock Exchange Act
1994.The Securities Act will consolidate and amend the laws
relating to the regulation and supervision of the securities
industry in Botswana; to make provisions for the regulation
and supervision of Securities Institutions and Markets; to
prohibit Insider trading and other forms of market abuse. The
commencement of the Securities Act shall bring additional
NBFls under the supervision of NBFIRA: e.g.; transfer agent/
transfer secretary which were previously not within the
supervisory purview of NBFIRA.
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LENDING ACTIVITIES

LENDING ACTIVITIES DEPARTMENT

The Lending Activities Department is responsible for the regulation
and supervision of micro-lenders, pawnshops and finance and
leasing companies.

Licensing Status of Regulated NBFls

The Regulatory Authority derives its mandate to license and regulate
the micro lenders from the NBFIRA Act, 2006 and its supporting
Micro Lending Regulations of March 2012. The number of licensed
micro lenders increased by 319% to 218 in 2015.

Pawnshops, finance and leasing companies are exempted from
licensing under the provisions of section 48 of the NBFIRA Act,
2006 pending the promulgation of the relevant legislation. The
entities are however required to apply for exemption in order
to start operation. The letters of exemption are issued in terms
of public notices issued in the years 2009, 201 I, and 2014. The
number of exempted pawnshops increased by |11% from 27 in
2014 to 57 in 2015, whilst the financing and leasing companies
increased by 266% from 3 in 2014 to | | in 2015.

Table 38 below shows the licensing status of the Non-Bank
Lending Sector; whilst figure 36 shows the structure of the Non-
Bank Lending Industry.

Performance of Micro Lending Businesses

The Micro Lending total assets strengthened by [4% from P29
billion in 2014 to P3.3 billion in 2015.The increase in total assets was
attributable to a recorded growth rate of 15% in the loan book values
from P2.6 billion in 2014 to P3 billion in 2015. The portfolio value
as a percentage of assets however decreased marginally from 92% in
2014 to 91% in 2015 signifying that the growth rate for other assets
was higher than that of the loan book value. The majority of the micro
lenders recorded an increase in assets.

The Total Capital and Reserves increased by 36% from P1.4 billion in
2014 to P1.9 billion in 2015 as a result of growth in earnings and capital
injection for some micro lenders.

Table 39, Figures 37 and 38 below show the compressed balance
sheet of the micro lending sector.

The Return on Average Assets (ROAA) increased to 12% as the
growth in the net income outpaced growth in assets. Return on Equity
(ROE) which measure profitability, however, decreased to 219% in 2015.
Table 41 below shows the business performance of the micro lending
sector.

The micro lending sector’s contribution to GDP remained insignificant
though there was an improvement to 0.8% in 2015. Table 42 shows
the market impact assessment of the micro lending sector to the GDP

Table 38: The Licensing Status of the Non-Bank Lending Sector

Type of NBFI 2014 New license/ Withdrawals/ 2015 %
Exemptions  Dissolutions Change

Micro Lenders |66 52 9 218 31

Pawnshops 27 30 0 57 11

Finance and 3 8 0 Il 267

Leasing

Grand Total 196 90 9 286

Table 39: Key ltems of the Statement of Financial Position

Description Year 2014 (Billion)  Year 2015 (Billion)
Loan Book Values 26 3.0
Other Assets 02 029
Total Assets 29 33
Capital |4 1.9
Other Liabilities [.5 |.4

Source: NBFIRA

Figure 36: Structure of the Non-Bank Lending Industry in 2015
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Figure 37: Compressed Balance Sheet for the Micro Lending Sector
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LENDING ACTIVITIES (cont.)

Figure 38: Composition Micro Lending Loan Portfolio
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The Total Revenue for the sector increased by 419% from P0.79 billion
in 2014 to P1.1 billion in 2015, as a result of an increase in both interest
income and other income. Net Income increased by 24% to P392
million due to an increase in total revenue.

Table 40 and Figure 39 below show the income statement of the
micro lending sector.

Table 40 - Micro Lending Sector Income statement.

Description Year 2014 (Billion)  Year 2015 (Billion)
Total Revenue 0.79 [

Total Expenses 0.37 0.59

Profit Before Tax 0.42 051

Source: Micro Lenders Financial Statements

Figure 39: Micro Lending Income Statement
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Table 41: Business Sector Performance of the Micro Lending Sector

Business Sector 2014 2015 Annual
Performance % Change
Total Assets (Billions) 29 3.3 3.8
Total Revenue (Billions) — 0.79 1 39
ROAA (Av. 2 yrs) I'1.4% 12.7% 1.3
ROE 23.1% 21.0% @.1)
Portfolio Value as 91.8% 91.1% 0.7)

Percentage of
Total Assets

Table 42: Market Impact Assessment of the Micro Lending Sector

Market Impact Assessment 2014 2015
Total Revenue (Billions) 0.79 1
GDP 142.0 1457
% GDP 0.6% 0.8%

Market Conduct Regulation

The Regulatory Authority continued to receive complaints from the
public against micro lenders, pawnshops and finance and leasing
companies. As at March 31st, 2016, 82 complaints were received
being a significant reduction of 519% from 167 complaints received
in the previous year

The reduction in complaints received is attributable to the
following;

* That the public is now aware that they should attempt to
resolve the complaints with the entities before the complaints
can be escalated to the Regulatory Authority.

+ The regulated entities are aware of their obligation to resolve
the complaints before they can be escalated to the Regulatory
Authority.

* The regulated entities are explaining the terms and conditions
of the loan to the customer as evidenced by a remarkable
reduction rate above.

The Regulatory Authority managed to resolve seventy four (74%) of
the complaints that fall within its purview.



LENDING ACTIVITIES (cont)

Table 43 below shows the number of complaints received over
the two year period.

Table 43: Number of Complaints Received

Nature Of Compliants Number of  Number of
complaints complaints % Change
in 2014/15 in 2015/16

Refusal to Issue Statement I 0 (100)

on Demand

Excessive Interest Charges 49 25 (49)

lllegal Collection Method 8 I (88)

Over Deduction of 34 Il (68)

Repayment instalments

Retention of Bank Cards 0

Retention of national ID 0

(Omang)

Terms and Conditions not 4 0 (400)

explained

Use of blank documents 2 0 (200)

Disputed settlement amount [l -

Deduction without signed 6 =

contract*

Other** 40 28 (30)

TOTAL 167 82 (51)

Note:

* Nature of complaints not reported in 2014

#* Includes the complaints outside the Regulatory Authority's
jurisdiction, pawned items being sold before expiry of contract,
pawned items sold and pawnshop reluctant to give customers
balance of the proceeds.

Regulatory Challenges
The department experienced the following regulatory challenges;

* Regulatory lag — the industry is ahead of the Regulator in
terms of innovation

+ Lack of Regulation for other sectors falling under the purview
of the department

* Inadequate collaboration between the various stakeholders in
the financial services sector and the law enforcement agents

« Entities operating illegally

+ Public dealing with unlicensed entities

«  The department is incapacitated in terms of staff resources.

+  Some regulated entities have inadequate knowledge on the
financial services laws

* Reluctance in submission of regulatory Returns

*  Non-compliance by Micro lenders with our legislations.
However, the Regulatory Authority is taking regulatory action
for non-compliance.
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GENERAL INFORMATION
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Country of incorporation and domicile

Botswana

Nature of business and principal activities

Safeguard the fairness, stability and efficiency of the non-bank financial sector.

Directors

Mrs. M. Dube (Chairperson)

Dr. TTK Matome (Chairperson - Finance and Audit Committee)
Mr. M. Mbaakanyi (Term ended on 30 September 2015)

Mr. A. Khunwana (Appointed on 01 October 2015)

Mrs. LK. Mohohlo

Mr. S.M. Sekwakwa

Ms. L. Tema Appointed on Ol May 2015)

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. O. M. Ramasedi

Registered Office

3rd Floor Exponential Building Plot 54351
New Central Business District
Off P G Matante

Gaborone

Business Address

Plot 54351

New Central Business District
Off PG Matante

Gaborone Botswana

Bankers Stanbic Bank of Botswana Limited

Auditors Grant Thornton
Chartered Accountants
Plot 50370, Acumen Park Fairgrounds Office Park Gaborone
Botswana

Functional Currency

Botswana Pula (BWP)
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are required in terms of the Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority Act, 2006 to maintain adequate accounting
records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in
this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Authority as at
the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are based upon
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The directors of the Authority acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established
by the Authority and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to
meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the
Authority and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Authority's business is conducted in a
manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Authority is on identifying, assessing,
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Authority. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Authority
endeavors to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed

within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However,
any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the Authority's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March, 2017 and, in the light of this review and the
current financial position, they are satisfied that the Authority has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for

the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the company's annual financial statements. The annual
financial statements have been examined by the Authority's external auditors and their report is presented on page 69.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 70 to 95, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the
board of directors on 29 July 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

Director Director

29 July 2016

Gaborone

NBFIRA



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

tel: +267 395 2313 P O. BoxI 157 Plot 50370
o Gra ntThornton fax: +267 397 2357 Gaborone, Acumen Park

web: www.gt.cobw Botswana Fairgrounds

An instinct for growth’

To the members of Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority

We have audited the accompanying annual financial statements of Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March, 2016, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes, as set out on pages 70 to 95.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements

The Authority’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and requirements of the Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory
Authority Act, 2006, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of, the financial position of Non-Bank Financial Institutions
Regulatory Authority as at 31 March, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Act, 2006.

& 7Thoormlon.,, 29 JuL 2016

....................................................... e
Chartered Accountants Certified Auditor: Aswin Vaidyanathan Gaborone

(Memb No: 199801 10)

Partners Aswin Kalyanaraman*

Raja Ran Madhavan Venkatachary*

Jay Ramesh (Managing) N. Narasimhan*

Dinesh Mallan* Anthony Quashie** Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
Vijay Kalyanaraman* (*Indian **Ghanaian) Offices in Gaborone & Francistown
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 March 2016

FIGURES IN (27
Government grants 3 Il 586 743 13233 188
Amortisation of government grants 4 3578179 | 112070
Other revenue 4 | 401 146 2 187 542
Supervisory levies 5 33 845 061 29 858 117
Total revenue 50411 129 46 390917
Staff costs 6 (36 723 577) (29 939 804)
Consultancy costs 7 (5 139 090) (3 449 140)
Administration expenses 8 (13 640 097) (9 679 235)
Other expenses 9 (9 880 105) (7712 425)
Total expenditure (65 382 869) (50 780 604)
Operating deficit (14 971 740) (4 389 687)
Finance income 10 | 547 503 2 668 364
Operating deficit (13 424 237) (1721 323)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (13 424 237) (1721 323)

NBFIRA



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 March 2016

FIGURES IN (BWP)

Assets

Non-Current Assets

2016 (BWP)

2015 (BWP)

Property, plant and equipment [l 6 496 086 6209 081
Work in progress 12 1236715 10 883 876
Intangible assets 13 Il 463 487 -
29 196 288 17 092 957
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 14 297 650 572 114
Cash and cash equivalents I5 26 549 247 48 337 277
26 846 897 48 909 391
Total Assets 56 043 185 66 002 348
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Statutory reserve 5765793 5765793
Accumulated funds | 985 169 |5 409 406
7 750 962 21 175 199
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Government grants 17 33 608 748 31 656 562
African Development Bank grant 18 6 386 283 5551 864
39 995 031 37 208 426
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 4 124 307 4252 897
Short term employee benefits 16 3464 614 2451 700
Operating lease liability 708 271 914 126
8297 192 7618723
Total Liabilities 48 292 223 44 827 149
Total Equity and Liabilities 56 043 185 66 002 348
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

for the year ended 31 March 2016

FIGURES IN (BWP)

Statutory
Reserve

Accumulated

Total equity

funds

Balance at | April, 2014 5765793 17 130 729 22 896 522
Deficit for the year - (1721 323) (1721 323)
Other comprehensive income - = -

Total comprehensive Loss for the year - (1 721 323) (1 721 323)
Balance at | April, 2015 5765793 15 409 406 21 175199
Deficit for the year - (13424 237) (13 424 237)
Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive Loss for the year - (13 424 237) (13 424 237)
Balance at 31 March, 2016 5765793 | 985 169 7 750 962

Note

Statutory Reserve

Section 22 (2) of the Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Act, 2006, requires that an annual estimate not exceeding 10 per cent
(10%) of the total expenditure provided for in the estimates, be provided for as a reserve. The Statutory Reserve provided is adequate

for the level of expenditure incurred. The purpose of the reserve is to be utilised for unforeseen regulatory expenditure.

The Regulatory Authority believes that based on the current budget, the statutory reserve is adequate and in compliance with section

22(2) of the Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Act, 2006.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2016

FIGURES IN (BWP)

Cash flows from operating activities

2016 (BWP)

2015 (BWP)

(Utilised)/generated from operations 22 (14018 806) (488 170)
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment [l (2 732 635) (1 383 246)
Sale of property, plant and equipment | 160 148 253 543
Development costs incurred (14109 023) (6 395 580)
Finance income | 547 503 2 668 364
Net cash from investing activities (14 134 007) (4856 919)
Cash flows from financing activities

Government grants 4253 107 4513251
African Development Bank 2111676 2983615
Net cash from financing activities 6 364 783 7 496 866
Total cash movement for the year (21 788 030) 2151777
Cash at the beginning of the year 48 337 277 46 185 500
Total cash at end of the year I5 26 549 247 48 337 277
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2016

I. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. The annual financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value, and incorporate
the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Pula.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
I.I Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the
Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority Act, Chapter 46:08.

1.2 Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and judgements concerning the future. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical factors coupled with expectations about future events that are considered reasonable. In the process of applying the
Authority's accounting policies, management has made the following estimates that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year.

Key Areas of estimation and judgement

The key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty and judgements at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year as this
involves assessments or decisions that are particularly complex or subjective, are discussed below:

Depreciation charges and residual values

For depreciation purposes, a significant component is defined as equal to or greater than 20% of total cost of the asset and each significant
component with different useful lives is depreciated separately. The depreciation methods reflects the pattern in which economic benefits
attributable to the assets flow to the entity. The useful lives of these assets can vary depending on a variety of factors, including but not
limited to the technological obsolescence, maintenance programs, refurbishments, product life cycles and the intention of management.
Residential values of assets are determined by estimating the amount that the entity would currently obtain from the disposal of the
asset were already of age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. The estimation of the useful life and residual values
of an asset is a matter of judgement based on the past experience of the Authority with similar assets and the intention of management.
Assessment of the asset condition and usefulness are key assumptions used to determine the assets’ useful lives and residential values.

Supervisory Levies
Where supervisory levies are calculated on information that has not been audited, the Authority assumes that estimates have been used
and will place reliance on the information submitted by the regulated entities as a basis for calculation.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that
the assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying value
of assets.

The Regulatory Authority reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash
flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future
cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of assets are inherently uncertain
and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors including production estimates, supply and
demand, together with economic factors such as exchange rates, inflation and interest.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.

1.3 Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:
* it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity; and
¢ the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially measured at cost.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
* it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

* there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

* there is an ability to use or sell it.

* it will generate probable future economic benefits.

* there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.

* the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item Useful life
Risk based Supervisory System 5 years

I.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and / or accumulated impairment losses, if any. All plant
and equipment are measured at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical costs includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs such as replacement parts and major inspections are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All day-to-day repairs and maintenance are charged to the surplus or deficit during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, to estimated
residual values. Where significant parts of an item have different useful lives to the item itself, these parts are depreciated separately
over their useful lives. The methods of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually, with the effect of any change
in estimates accounted for prospectively.

The following methods and rates were used during the period to depreciate plant and equipment to estimated residual values:

Item Average useful life
Leasehold property Lease term
Furniture and fixtures 10 %

Motor vehicles 20 % Office
Equipment I5%

Computer equipment [4 9%-33%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the surplus or deficit in the year the asset is derecognised.

2016 ANNUAL REPOR



ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
for the year ended 31 March 2016

1.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each financial reporting date, the Authority reviews the carrying amount of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Authority estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating section to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating section) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, its carrying amount
is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the surplus or deficit in those categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating-section) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. This is done so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in the prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
surplus or deficit.

I.6 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Authority and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts and rebates. The Authority
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Authority has
concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific revenue recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognised:

The supervisory levies

The supervisory levies and licence fees were promulgated into law through Statutory Instrument No.57 of 2015 of the Republic of
Botswana, which was published in the Government Gazette of the 22nd May 2015. Supervisory levies are charged and are payable in
two equal portions, on or before the 30th April and 31st October of each financial year. Registered non-bank financial institutions are
required to pay levies on an annual basis in terms of the Non-Bank Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority, Chapter 46:08. Supervisory
levies are recognised on an accrual basis. The Regulatory Authority may, on application, waive payment of some or all of a supervisory
levy, penalty levy or a fee.

License fees
License fees are recognised on licensing of the relevant supervised entities. Some classes of regulated entities are charged annual licence
fees, such fees are recognised by the Authority as revenue.

Penalties
Penalties are recognised in the surplus or deficit on penalizing the relevant supervised entities.

Finance income
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method). Finance income is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will
be complied with.When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to the purchase of an asset, it is recognised
as capital grant in the statement of financial position and released to the statement of comprehensive income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset. Where the Authority receives a non-monetary grant, the asset and the grant are recorded at
nominal amounts and released to the total surplus or deficit over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual installments.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
for the year ended 31 March 2016

|.7 Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Foreign exchange translation gains or losses arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those used when translating at initial recognition during the
period or in the financial statements are taken to the statement of comprehensive income in the period they arise.

1.8 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. The Regulatory Authority had no eligible assets or borrowing costs for the period reported.

1.9 Employment Benefits

Pension
The Regulatory Authority operates a defined contribution scheme for the employees. Payments to the scheme are charged as an
expense to the statement of comprehensive income as they fall due.

Gratuity

The Regulatory Authority provides for gratuity benefits for employees on fixed term contracts in line with the Employment Act Chapter
4701 and the relevant employment contracts. Gratuity expenses are recognised immediately, to the extent that the benefits are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of service, until the benefits become payable. The charge is made to expenses in the statement
of comprehensive income and a separate provision in the statement of financial position.

Leave pay provision

The Regulatory Authority recognises, in full, employee’s right to annual leave entitlement in respect of past service. The
recognition is made each year and is calculated based on accrued leave days not taken during the year. The charge is made to expenses
in the statement of comprehensive income and a separate provision in the statement of financial position.

I.10 Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
* the Authority will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
* the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that they are intended to
compensate. A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period in which it becomes
receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the statement of financial position
by setting up the grant as Government grants under liabilities or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Grants relating to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are credited to the income statement on a straight line basis over the
expected useful lives of the related assets. The related costs are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. When an asset financed
through grants is disposed of, the total unamortised portion of the grant relating to the asset is recognised in profit and loss in the year
of disposal.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
for the year ended 31 March 2016

I.1'l Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, cash deposits on call and short-term fixed deposit
accounts in banks, net of bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Due to the short-term
nature of these, the amortised cost approximates its fair value.

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as loans and receivables. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, including transaction costs except for instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit. All regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Authority commits to purchase the assets. Regular
way purchases and sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Authority’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.
Financial assets

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the surplus or deficit when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through amortisation process.

Loans and receivables consist of trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Impairment of financial assets
The Regulatory Authority assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of a separate allowance account,
namely provision for doubtful debts accounts. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. In relation to financial assets, a
provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor) that the Authority will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The
carrying amount of receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed
as uncollectable.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as loans and borrowings. The Regulatory Authority determines the classification
of its financial liabilities on initial recognition. Loans and borrowings are carried subsequent to initial measurement at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit when the loans and borrowings are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process. The Regulatory Authority’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Amortised cost

Amortised cost is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment and principal repayment or reduction.
The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a currently legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (or; where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

The Authority has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

a.the Authority has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b. the Authority has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Authority has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Authority’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Authority are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a currently legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

In that case, the Authority also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Authority has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaranteed over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Authority could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Authority has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are measured
at the directors’ best estimate of expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect of the time value of money is material.

.13 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date:
whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

Minimum operating lease payments of an operating lease are recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit on a straight line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2016

2. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Authority has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year
and that are relevant to its operations:

Amendment to IFRS |3: Fair Value Measurement: Annual improvements project

The amendment clarifies that references to financial assets and financial liabilities in paragraphs 48-51 and 53-56 should be read as
applying to all contracts within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9, regardless of whether they meet the
definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities in IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after | July, 2014.
The Authority has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2016 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material. Amendment to |AS 24: Related Party Disclosures:

Annual improvements project

The definition of a related party has been amended to include an entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, which provides
key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity (“management entity). Disclosure
is required of payments made to the management entity for these services but not of payments made by the management entity to its
directors or employees.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after | July, 2014.
The Authority has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2016 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The Authority has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the Authority's accounting periods beginning on or after | April, 2016 or later periods:

Amendment to IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Annual Improvements project

The amendment provides additional guidance regarding transfers with continuing involvement. Specifically, it provides that cash flows
excludes cash collected which must be remitted to a transferee. It also provides that when an entity transfers a financial asset but retains
the right to service the asset for a fee, that the entity should apply the existing guidance to consider whether it has continuing involvement
in the asset.

The effective date of the Authority is for years beginning on or after | January, 201 6.
The Authority expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2017 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Authority's annual financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative: Amendment to IAS |: Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendment provides new requirements when an entity presents subtotals in addition to those required by IAS | in its annual financial
statements. It also provides amended guidance concerning the order of presentation of the notes in the annual financial statements, as
well as guidance for identifying which accounting policies should be included. It further clarifies that an entity’s share of comprehensive
income of an associate or joint venture under the equity method shall be presented separately into its share of items that a) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and b) that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

The effective date of the Authority is for years beginning on or after | January, 2016.
The Authority expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2017 annual financial statements.
[t is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the Authority's annual financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
for the year ended 31 March 2016

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurements of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9
was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

* All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the outstanding principal are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on outstanding principal, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity investments are measured at fair value at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effect of the changes of the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in fair value of a
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

* In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. It is therefore no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

* The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available
in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that
are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been replaced with the principal of an "‘economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after | January, 2018.